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AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Sharcholders of
BEYA Factoring, Establecimiento Financiero de Crédita, 5.4

¥

IJ

We have audited the financial statements of BEVA Factoring, Establecimients Financiero de Crédito, 5.A. {the
Company, » Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argeniaria (iroup company - Note 16} comprising the balance sheet at 31
December 2007, and the related income statement, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statemenm and
notes o the financial statements for the year then ended. The preparation of these financial statements is the
responsibility of the Company’s directors. Our responsibility i3 to express an opinion on the financial
statemerts taken as a whobe based on our audit work performed in accordance with generally accepted suditing
standards, which require examination, by means of sclective fests, of the evidence supporting the financial
ctatements and cvaluation of their presentation, of the accounfing policies applied and of the catimates made.

As required by Spanish corporate and commercial law, for comparison purposes the Company's directors
present, in addition 1o the figures for 2007 for each item in the balance shect, income statement, statement of
changes in equity, cash flow statement, and notes to the financial statements, the Apores for 2006. Our opinian
refers only to the fipancial ststements for 2007, On 20 March 2007, we issued our auditors’ report on the

ek 's 2006 financial statements, in which we expressed an unqualified opinion

As indicated in Mote |, the Company's operations are performed under the managemerit of the Banco HBilbao

8
Vizcayn Argentaria Group, giving rise 1o the balunces and transsctions with related companies that are
indicated in the Note 30, The sccompanying financial statements, which are presented in compliance with
current regitations, should be interpreted in this context.

4. In euwr opinion, the sccompanying financial statements for 2007 present fairly, in all material respects, the
equity end financial position ol BEVA Factoring, Establecimiento Fmanciero de Crédite, 5.A. al 31 Deocember
2007, wud the results of its operations, the changes in ils equity and its cash fows for the year then ended, and
contain the required information, sufficient for their proper interpretation and comprehension, in conformity
with the sccounting principles and standards contained in Bani: of Spain Circular 42004, which were applied
on 2 basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

5. The sccompanying directors’ report for 2007 contains the explanations which the directors consider
appropriate about the Company’s situation, the evelution of its business and cther matlers, but is not an inlegral
part of the financial statements. We have checked that the accounting information in the directors’ report is
consistent with thal contained in the fnancial statements for 2007. Our work as anditors was confined 1w
checking the directors” report with the aforementioned scops, and did not include & review of any information
ather than that drawn from the Bank's sccounting records.
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Tranalstion of fnancial staterments aripinally issued in Spanish and prapamd i accordance with pensmlly accouming
principlas Somin (see Note 37, in tha avent of a dlscrepancy. the Spanish-lanJuages version prevails.

BEBVA FACTORING,

ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006 (Notes 1 to 3)
Thousands prtl_rﬁ'!-_

ARBETS b e SO T S e A R,
CAGH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS (Note 6)
FINAMGLAL ASEETS HELD FOR TRADING
Loans and advences to credit instituions
Monay market mnsactions thraugh counterparty enbfies
Loans and advances to olher dabtors
Dobe securilics
Other squily instnanonis
Trading dervaties
Mamorandum em: Loansd and advanced as coliateral
OTHER FINAMCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFTT OR LOSS
Loans and advences lo cred® insiitutions
Momay markel iransactions through countarparty entitas
Loans and advances 1o other debtors
Diahd aecuritas
Oihar aguily insinuments
Mermarandum Hem: Loansd and adhvanced ag collstarsl
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Note T)
Dabil nskusmeants
Criher aquity insbroments
Memorandum e Loaned and advancad 25 collaterl
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Mote 8}
Loans and advances 1o credd inatitulions F
Bonay marked transsctions through counterparty entilies
Loar= and advances 1o cusiomenrs
Dabit instruments
Ciler financial asseis
Memomndum fem: Logned and advanced as coliatesal
HELD-TO-MATURITY iINVESTMENTS
Memomantdun e Leaned and advanced as collatersl
CHANGES 1N THE EAIR VALUE OF HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLI) HEDGES OF

INTEREST RATE RISK

HEDGING DERIVATIVES

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Leans and advances fo oredd mstitulions
Loains and adwances 1o other debbors
DebH instrumeanis
Eguily instrumants
Tangible esspis
ey assals

(") Presanted for comparison pufposes only.




ASSETS {Cantinuation)
INVESTMENTS (Mote 9)
Asocinles
Jeindly controlled stilies
GEroup entifies
[HEURAMCE CONTRACTS LINKED TO PENSIONS (Notes 14)
TANGIBLE ASSETS (Note 10)
Property, plant and equipmen for own use
Investmend property
Ciher assels leased ouf under an operating feese
Mamarandum flam: Loaned and advanced 2z collateral
INTANGIELE ASSETS
Goodwill
Other intangible assols
TAX ASEETS [Hote 18)
Courreerd

Dredermed
FREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME (Hote 11)

OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

{*) Presented for companisoan purposes only.

The accompanying Natas 110 31 are an integral part of the balance sheat a5 of December 31, 2007.




Transiation of francial stalements arginally issued in Spanish and prEpsred i accardance with ganemily sccowniing
principles Spaln (sse Nofe 3T). In the oven! of & discrepandy, thi Spamisf-\anHUEge Varson prevels.

BBVA FACTORING,

ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.

SALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006 (Notes 1 o 3)

[T Thie T A S R N A et e i s o 1
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES H-ELD F-DR TRADIHG
bdaney marked pparstons frough countepariss
Cusiomar deposks
Dbt cerificains finduding bands)
Trading dervalives
Short pasitions
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Deposis from oedil instiuions
Deposis from olhar creditors
Diebl earlificates {incuding banits)
FIMANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH EQLITY
Deposks from credil Instiutions
Deposis fram other creditons
Dbl carificates {induding bonids)
FINAMGLAL LIARILITIES AT AMORTIZED COST [Nabe 12)
Depbais from contral banks
Daposis fom sredit insSufions
Maney markel operations Bvough counleparies
Depasils fom other madiios
Dabt cortificates {including bonds)
Subordinates Gabities
Oithar firamrcial lnbdilies
CHAMGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF THE HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLI HEDGES OF
INTEREST RATE RISK
HEDGING DERIVATIVES
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Dieposis from alter crediices
Oifher Eshilfiag
PROWVISHONS (Mote 13)
Provisions for pensions and similar obiigations
Prowisions for [aees
Piosisions for coningant ssposures and commitmants
Cihar provisions
TAX LIABILITIES {MNote 15)
Sl
Dhefmrrad
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME (Note 11}
OTHER LIABILITIES
CARITAL HAVING THE NATURE OF FINAMNCIAL LIABILITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES
{*} Praganied for companson purposes ofily.




LIABILIFIES AND EQUITY | Contruatian .
WaL LA TION ADJUSTMENTS
Syadatie-for-sale firancal szsets
Firancial liabdities at fair vake throwgh equity

Cish flow hadges .
Hedges af net imestments in foregn cparations
Exchange diffarences
Weon-cirrent assets hekf for sale
STOCKHOLDER'S EQLATY
Capimal (Mobe 18)
Isgmad
Linpeid and uncalled {-)
Share preméum {Hote 17)
Besarves {Nole 18)
Apcirmaated reserees (BI85ES)
Fitzined earmings
Orvar equity instruments
Equity component of compotnd financal instnenients
CHfver
Less: Treasury shares
Inzame atiributed to the group
Less: Dividonds and remuneration
TOTAL EQUTY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AHD EQLITY

o=

CONTINGENT
Financal guaranis:s
Assets samarked for third-pardy obligafions
Criher contingent exposines

CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS

Direambie by thind parties

Cihar commEments

{*} Presanted for companson pUrposes only.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 31 am an integral part of the balance sheet as of December 31, 2007.



Transiation of fitancial stalwments ofginally isswed in Spaniszh and proparcd i accortance with paneaiy sccouring
principins Spain {see Mofe 3T). In e avent of @ discregancy, e Spanish-language vErE prevalls,

BBVA FACTORING,

ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.
INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006 (Notes 1 to 3

b g s b b L 1 TEETAR
i :'E_ AL : Py e i _-.':_- -q-_: i

e - B g P e T e e T
ﬂ|ﬁi”{l5ﬂﬁmmwnﬂ!
INTEREST EXPENSE AND SIMILAR CHARGES Mls 24)
income on edquty hiving the nolune of 3 Brarcial labiiby
Cihar

IHCOME FROM EQUITY INSTRLUMENTS (Mala 35)
Ivvesirna il it gRsGnning
Ireiadiwis b joindy oonrinolisc] anlity
Ierensirmemaris: b Cporu enlllias

O nuguity kevsesimants
MET INTEREST INCGOME
FEE AND COMMISSION IRCOME (Mots 25)
FEE AND COMMISSION EXPEMNESES {Mole 28)
MH&MLDSSEECHFIMMHH&EH!@HABILH‘IEHMEH
Haid fwr brnding

Cirer fnangial imstruments ot Fir vakes Moagh profit of las
snafabin-ior-sale Gnancal osseds

Loans end mecehabing

Other
EXCHANGE DIFFERERCES [MET)
GROSS [NCOME

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

PERSONMEL EXPEMEES {MNole 27}

CTHER ACREBISTRATIVE EXPERSES [Mata 24}
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Tangibke Assels [Mote 10

risrybia Anmaic
OTHER OPERATING EXFEMSES
HET DPERATING INCOME.
RIPAIRMERT LOGSES

Fonilatia-forsale fimancial assels

Loans g rocehables {Mole Oy

Helg-losmatunty imvesiments
Mon-currenl sapals hed for sake

lirenitmanis

Tanghie asels

Goodwil

Dihar intangibies ascols
CHher assals
FPROVISION EXPENSE (HET] [Mole 15}
OTHER GAING
Gains on dizposal of anglia Rsssls
Gains on disposal of invesieoani
Othar {Mioks 283
OTHER LOSSES
Losses an dispoaal of larghie aasnks
Losmes on diaposal of imwesimers
Cilhar (ke 25
INCOME REFORE TAX
MCOME TAX [(hols TE)
INCOME FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
MCOME FROM DISCONTINUED DPFERATIONS (NET)
INCOME FOIR THE PERIOD

(*) Presenied for comparison purpases anly.

The accompanving Notes 1 to 31 are an integral part of the income staternant for the year ended
Diacamber 3%, 2007,



Translution of financial salements anginaly lseved in Spanish aod prepared in accormance with ganerally accourting
principlas Spain [sea Nole 3T). In ina avenl of @ discreparcy, the Spanish-lanpuage version prevails,

BBEVA FACTORING,

ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND
2006

{Notes 1 to 3)
Thiusgnls :H'ELH'D-L_

.
-

R T T R Fp b A e
HET INCOME RECOGHMISED DIRECTLY iN EQLATY
SAvalablo-lor-dals fnancial aseets
Revahuation gensficssos
Amounts ransfemad to incoma: statement
Incoeme tax
finclassfications
Cither financal lshittas ot fair valus
Revafuglion gainsiosses
Ampunis tensfared 5 income siatement
st Las
Recdassificalions
Cash forw hedges
Rerakiation gaireioses
Amouns tansfermed o income stalaranl
Amounts ansfemed in the initial carmying amoust of the hadged #ems
st ks
Recassfications
Hedgas of nat investment in foreign opemtons
Frdahision gamaSlodsas
Mhnwmmw
Income @
Excharge dillerencoss
Traslation gainsiosses
Amcunis ranshmed 10 ncone stalemean
Incremse tax
Mon-cumant assets hald for salo
Revahiasion gains
Ammounts iransfered o inoome sladamaant
Impanme tan
Raclogdilicalons
CONSOLIDATED INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Published corsofidated incame for the year
Agipstmants dus 10 changes in proounting policy
Adustments made ko cmect amors
TOTAL INCOME AND EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR

MEMORANDUM ITEM: EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS ALLOCABLE TD PRIOR YEARS
Duse iz changes In accounting policias

Sinckhoider's Equity

Valuation sdjustmants
Che o Efioes

Steckhnlder's Equity
Valuation adusiments

[*} Preaenisd 105 comparisod purpoaas ony.

The accompanyving Motes 1 to 31 are an integrai part of the income stalement for the vear anded
Dacamber 31, 2007,



Transistion of fnancial sislernents onginally issued i Spanish and prapared in accordance with gunaraﬁy aCoonting
principdes Spain (ee Nole 31). In the ovenl of & dfscrepancy, e Spendsh-languags version prevalls,

BEVA FACTORING, :
ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2007 AND 2006
(Notes 1 to 3}

Adjusiment i profit
Dirpraciation of @ngilks asasls (+)
Amortisafion of inlengible assees (+)
impainment lesses (nef) {5
Prowigion axpards (naf) (+=)
GiainsiLosses an disposal of iangible assels (45}
GainalLossas on disposal of mestimsnt {+-)
Taneeg [#5-)

Cher non-mnonatany Hecnsg (+5-)

Adjusbed profit

Het increassidecreass in operating assels

Financai assals hald for rading
Logns and sdvances 1o smadil ralibiions
Koney markal oparations through counlemarties
Loans ared mdeancs o athar fobioes
Pedit seuwitios
e squily instrumanss
Trading dishvalives

Cither finandal assets al Bl value rough profit or loss
Lerana and advances to crodi insludions
Wanoy marke! apessiicns through counberpartias
Loans and advances o ofher deblors
Dl goairities:

Ciiher equily insbruments

Anvaitabie-lor-sale financial assets
Dl nscuilien
Criner equity Instrumarls

Loans aied recaivabices
Loans and advances 50 credil instiutions
Manay markel aparalions thiough counteparties
Lewinz and advances fo ofher dabbors
Drabil saturites
Oihar finandal astals

iy apamiing assals

{*) Presenind for comparison purposes anly,



|_--.-

I

Hﬂimﬂwhmlhhﬂm

Flnamndal iabilities held for rading
Dapasis rom crodil instilubions
Maney markel apaerations through courlspaes
Depoais from other oediiors
[iobt certificabes {incluting bands)

Trading derwatives
Sharl pastians

Cithar firancial abiifes st fair valys thrawgh profit or loss
Denosis fom oedt instilfions
Deposi= from ather crediiors
Dedt perificates (inchiding bonds)

Finanal Babditios o fair value through equity
Dieposits from ot rsiiufions
Diepeosils from oiher cradtion
Diabil cestificatas finciuding bords)

Financis abilitias moasured &f amosed cost
[epasiis fonm central banks
Daposis from cradit insfulions
Maney marksl aparations thioagh counterpanios
Dapoeis from ofer oedilon
Dbt certificates (Including bonds)

Critvar fmancial liabillEss

Oiifuar operaling liabllbges

Tatal net cash flows from eporating activities (1)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Investmant (-

Group enties, jointly controlled entities and assockies
Tangitna assots

Insargible assets

Hald-to-malurity imvanimanes

Crithar Brandal asssls

Crihar essets

Dvestrmnts [+
Group nlilies, jontly contoled entfies and assodains
Tanglide assels
Inlangile GEsals
Hedod-1o-maivurily gwasoments
Cther financial assets
Cieher assols

Total ot cash flows investing activities (7}

[*§ Presenbed for cOMparison purposes Only.




Joonpmaten il 1 BRES
CASH FINANCI
issuannee’ Radampliion of capital (+~)
Acqusition of cwn eguily Irstuments (-}
[ispasal of cwm equety instumants [(+)
[ssuEnoaFedemgtion of non-voling agulty units [+-)

IssummcsRadempion of ofer squity instniments (4]

lesusncaftodomption of capital having the natune of a financial Babiity (<}
tpsuancnfademation of subardinated Gabiles(y-)

susncaRedemption of odher long-term Eabliies {+-)

Dividendsnisrest paid (-}

Dilhor itams retaling 1o finandng aclivilies (+=)

Total net cash fiows from financing activilles {3}

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH OR CASH EQUIVALENTS (4]

MET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH DR CASH EQUIVALENTS (1+2+344)
Cash or cash eguivakents al beginning of year
I::dmrnuh-gmhnﬁdmulw

{*] Presented for comparison mapases only.

The accompanying MNoles 1 to 27 are an immmdﬂhemmmmmﬂﬁmmmm
December 31, 2007,




Transiation of financial statements originally issued in Spanish and prepamd In accordance wilh ponerally accepted Scoounting
rincples in Spain (so Mote 211 In Ma event of a discrepancy, the Spanish-anguage yerHion pravails

BBVA Factoring,
Establecimiento Financiero de Crédito, S.A.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

p i hasis of presentati the financi menis n tiomn,

1.1. Introduction -

BEWVA Factoring, Establacimiento Financlero de Crédlto, S.A. (he Company”) was incomporated In Bilbao under
the name of Sociedad de Financlacidn de Ventas a Plazo, S.A. (SOFIVENSA) in March 1968, In May 1937 the
Company’s name was changed to B.B. Factoring, 5.A. In 1988, after the Banco Bilbao Vizcava Group was
created, the Company became BSY Factoring, S.A. In 2000 Argentaria Factoring, E.F.C.. S.A, and Catalana de
Factoring 5.4, EF.C. were merged intd 88V Factoring, 5.4, EF.C, with tha dissoiutxn withiout liquidation of
the fiest two companias. The name of the post-merger company was BBVA Factoring, EF.C., 8.A. The
transactions performed by Argentada Facloring, E.F.C., S.A. and Calalana de Factoning, s.A., EF.C wam
deamad to ba parformed for the account of the Company for accounting purposas from 1 January 2000,

The Company is requlated by the Spanish Companias Law 311994, of 14 Apdl, which adapted Spanish credi
Banking Coordination Directive and introduced other emendments to b

instiution legisialion to the Sacond
financial systam, by Royal Decree 692/1995, of 26 Aprl, on the legal regime applcable to gredit finance

astablishments (EFCs) and by other provisions applicabla to it

As required by the aforementioned Royal Decree 69271906, on 23 October 1936, the Company was registered in
the Bank of Spaln’s Special Register of EFCs,

The bylaws and other public information on the Company can be consulied ai s registered office al o
Almogavares 185, 1°, Barceiona. Its company object, per ils bylaws, is to engage in recourse or NOA-TECOUNse
factoring fransactions and in complementary activities swch as investigating and classifying its clisntals,
recording accounts receivable and, generally, any other activity that faciltates the admindstration, evaluation,
sacurity and financing of the receivables arising from domestic and international commercial transactions that

may be assigned io L

The Company belongs to the Banco Bllbeo Vizcaya Asgentaria Group (Mote 18). The operating branches
perorm all the transactions retating to business altracted through the Banco Bilbeo Vizcaya Argentaria Group's
bramch network.

The Company's financial statements for 2006 were approved by the sharsholders at the Annual General Meating

of the Company on 28 June 2007. The 2007 financial statemants of the Company have not yvet been approved
by s sharsholders at the Annual General Meeting. However, the Company’s Board of Directors considers thal

the aforementioned financial stataments will be approved without any changes.



1.2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements -

n 22 Decambar 2004, the Bank of Spain issusd Circutar 4/2004 on Public and Cenfidential Financial Reporting
Rules and Fomats.

The purpose of the new accounting Circular & to modify the accointing system of Spanish credit instibtions and
1o adapt ® o the new framework arising from the adoption by the European Union, through vanous
EU Regulations, of the intemational Financial Reporting Standards {EL-IFRS) in accordance wilh Regulation
{EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Pariamant and of the Council of 19 July 2002 on the application of

intarnatisnal accounting standards.
The Company's financial statements for 2007 wers prepared by its directors {at the Board mealing on 28 March
2007} frem the Company's accounting records and are presanted in accordance with the formats established by

Bank of Spain Ciroular 42004, of 22 December, and, accordingly, thay prasent fairly the Company's equily and
financial position at 31 Decamber 2007, and the results of s oparations, the changes in egquity and the cash

flowes in 300T.

All aceounting policies and measurement bases with a matarial effect on the financial statements were applisd in
their preparation.

1.3. Comparative Information -

The information relafing o 2006 contsined in these notss to the financial siatemonts s presented wilh tha
information refaing to 2007 for comparison purposss ondy, and, accordingly. it does not comsStete the
Company's statutary financial statemants for 2008.

1.4, Responsibility for the Information and use of estimates -

The information in these financial statements is the respensibllity of the Company's directors. In the: financial
stataments for 2007 estimates were occasionally made by the Company in order to quanify certain of the
assets, Eablities, income, mponses and commitments repored hersin. These estmates relate basically o the

foflowing

s The impalrmant losses on certain assats (Mole &),

= The assumplions used in the actuaral calculation of e postemployment benafit lizbilikes and
commitments (Mote 2-d v 14).

= Tha usaful life of the tangible assals (Mate 10).

= The fair value of certain unguoted assats (Note 7 v B).
These esfimates were made on the basis of the best information avallable at 31 December 2007 on the events
anglysed. However, future events might make @ necessary o change these estimates (upwards of downwards)
in cormirg years.

1.5, Environmental impact -

Al 31 December 2007, the Company's financial statements did nof disclose any ilam that should be Includad in
the anvironmental infeemation document emvisaged in the related Ministry of Economy Order dated 8 Crtobar

2001,
1.6. Report on the activity of the Customer Care Department and the Customaer Ombudsman -

In conformity with Ministry of Economy Order ECOT34/2004, of 11 Maren, on Customer Care Departmants and
Sarvicas and Customer Ombudsman of Financial Insttutions, and becauss the Cormpany belongs to the Bancs
Bilbac Vizeaya Argentaria Group, the Bank adhered 1o the Reguiations on the Customer Dmbudsman and the
Customer Care Depariment of Banco Bilbao Viscaya Argentara, 3.A. [BBVAT) and designates a8 customer

ambudsman the ombudsman appointad by BBVA at any time.



1.7. Mindmum capital requirements -

Law 131082, of 1 June, and Bank of Spain Clroular 51993 and subsequant amendments thersto, regulale the
minimum capital requirements for Spaalsh credit institutions —bath at antity jeviel and st consolidated armup
tove- and the mannar in which these capital requisements are to be calculated.

As of Dacomber 31, 2007 and 2006 the Group's qualifying capiial excesded the minimum racquired undear the
aforamentioned leglslatan.

The Basel Committes pubdizshed a now Basel capital acoord (also known as Bagel I} which has replaced he
Basel Accofd, A new regulatony framework (Directives 2006/M8/EC and 2D06/M43/EC) was adopied In June 2006,

Royal Decras 216/2008, of 15 February, on capital of financial Insfitufions was published on 16 February 2008.
Also, @ sefies of amendments ware intoduced to Law 131085, of 25 May, on investmant ratios, capital and
reporting requiremants of financial Infermediaries. The main purposs of thesa new megulalions is fo transposa
fnto Spanish law Directive 2006/48/EC and Directive 20064 HNEC which, in tum, transpose inio Community faw

the New Basel Capital Accord (Basel (i),

Accordingly, in 2008 the BEVA Group, in which the Company lakes part, must calculats its capital requirerments
in acoordance with the aforemantioned regulations, which change the way enfities must calouiale their minimum
capital, Inciede new risks thal require the use of capilal, such as aperational risk, and introduce new calculation
methodologiss and models 'o be epplied by the entiies, and new requirements in the form of vahidation
mechanisms and publie information to be disclosad to the market. The BEVA Group is performing the necessary
adaptations to its poficies and processes in ordar comply with the aforementionad regulations. In this respact,
within the framework of the adaptation o Basel || camied out in recent ysars, advanced managemant iools are
baing implementsd for risk measurement (scoring systems, fransaclion monitoring, Value at Risk (VaR),
operafional risk measurement, Inter alia) which Include, as a fundamental variabie of the models, the analysis of

capital requirements and the impacts of the declsions taken by the Group. In any case, the Company's directors
cansider that the impact of the entry Into forcs of the aforementionad legislation will not be matersal,

1.8, Subseguent ovents -

In the period from 1 January 2008 to the date when these financial stalemenis were autharised for issue no
gvents tnok place having a material effect on the financlal statements.

i) licles and nt

The accouniing policles and measurement bases applied in preparing the Company's financial statements for
2007 ware as follows:

a) Finanglal instruments

Iritial racognifion of fnancial instrernands

Finansial Instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet whon the Company becomes a party to the
contract, in accordance wilh the contractual conditions, and, in the case of the Company and - view of fis
company object, the confract is based on the assignment of trade receivables under facloring arrangements and

complementary activities, Specifically, debt instruments, such as loans, ane recognised from the ima that a legal
right to recehee cash arises.



‘Dargcogribon of francial mstruments
A financial asset i derecognised when any of the following conditians are mat:
1. Tha contractual rights fo the cash flows from the financial asset axpire; of

2. The financial asse is transferrad and substantially all lts risks and rewards ane transferrad ar, although thesa
are not substantially transferred or retained, contral over the financl asssl is Iransfarmed.

Financlal liabfities are only derscognised when the obligations they genarste have been exinguished or when
they ane acquired, with the istenticn either o reesedl them or 1o cancal therm.

Egir valus and amorized cost of finrancial instrurmnents

The falr value of a financial Instrument on & given date |s taken to be the amount for which it coukd be bought or
sold on that dale by two knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction. The most objective and
common reference for the fair value of a financial instrement i the price that would be paid for it on an
organised, ransparent and deep market {“guoled price” or “market price”].

If thare is no market price for a given financial instrumant. its fair value is estimated on the basis of the price
astabliched in recent transactions involving similar instruments and, in the absence therenf, of vakmation
tochniquss sufficenlly used by the inlemational inancial communily, taking into accownt the speciic features of
the Instrument o be measured and, particularly, the various types of risk essociated with it

Amortised cost is understood to be the acquisition cost of a financial assel or ligbilty plus or minus, as
appropriate, the principal repayments and interest payments and the cumulative amertisation charged 1o the
income statement by the effective interest method of the difference bebwaen the inftial cost and tha maturity
amount of the financial instrumants. In the case of financial assats, amofised cost also includes any reduclions

fos impakmment.

Eor fixed rate financial instrements, the effective interest rata coimcidas with the contractual inlerest rate
astablished on the acouisition date. in the case of floaling rats financial instruments, the efiective interast mia &
astimated as for fixed rats transactions and is re-calculated on each repricing date on the basis of the changes

in future cash fiows arising therefrom.
Ciassificaion and measurement of financial assets and labiilies

Financial instruments are classifed in the Company's balance sheet into the following categorits:

1. Available for sale financial assets: This capdion in the ing halanca sheets includes tha equity on
TelafGnica Factoring Do Brasil, Lida. That the Company hold on (see Note Tk

This aquity is measered at acquisition cost adjusted, where appropriata, by any related impairment loss.

According to Circular 42004 of Bank of Spain, when there i& an impairmant evidence, the impaimant losses ans
aqual to the difference between their recoverable amount (Recoverable amount is the higher of an aggef's far
valse less costs 1o sell and its value in use: the present value of expectsd future cash flows discouniad ab the
markat rate of refum for similar securifies) and thelr carmying amount. Thess impairment lossas ane delermined
taking inle account the equity of the investes (excepl for valuation adjestments due to cash flow hedges) for the
last approved balance sheet, adjusted for the unrealised gains at the messurement date. Impairment losaes are
recognized in the incoma stelement for the period in which they arise as a direct reduction of the cost of the
instrament. Thess josses may only be reversed subsequently in the pvint of the sale of the assets,

The impairment losses on equity Instruments measured at acquisifion cost are agual to the difierence Detween
thair carrying amount and the present value of axpected fulure cash flows discounted at the market rate of retum
far similar securities. These impairment losses are detarmined taking infto account the equily of the invastas
{excopt for valuation adjustments due to cash flow hedges) for the |ast approved balance sheel, adjusted for the

unrealised gaing at the measureamant date.



impairment losses are recognized in the income statement for the parod in which they arse as a direct
raduction of the cost of the instrument. Thess kosses may only be reversed subsequantly in the event of the sale

of the assais.

pecreed Dividends from ihese equities are recognized as income in the heading “income fram e aquily

Insirments® In the accompanying income statements,

2. Loans and receivables: this category includes financing granted to fird parties in connection with ordinary
lending activities carried out by the Company and the "unfinanced, non-recourss” credit risk.

The finzncial assets includad in this category ars Initially recognised at Eair value, adjusted by the amount of the
feps and commissions and transaction costs directly attributable 1o tha acquisition of the financial assat, which
are chamged o fhe income statement on a straight-line basis until maturity, These assels are subseguently

mieasured at amorised cosl

Assets soquired at @ discounl are measured &t the cash amount paid and the difference batwesn their
valus and the cash amount pald is recognised as finance Income on 2 siraight-line bagis over hoe

remaining term to maturity.

The "recourss” transactions relate to debis for which the Company daoas nod bear the risk of nonpayment,
Conversely, in the "non-recourse” transactions, the Company baars any bad debt risk thal may arise (a default
by a debtor arising from frade disputes belwesn the deblor and the assignor or from breach of the contractual
\erms agreed upon by them is pat deamed to be 2 bad debt risk).

The “non-recourse” accounts recelvable, which are recorded at the full amount of the unmatured remitiances
deliverad by the assignors and approved by tha Company, ame induded under “Lnana and Recelvablas - Loans
and Advances io Customers - Factorng Transactions” (Note £.3). Tha undrawn portion of the amount panvable o
the assignors is recognised under “Financial Liabdiies at Amortized Cost - Other Financial Liab#ities”™ (Woke 12Z)
in the accompanying balance sheats. in condrasi, in "recourse® transsctions, “Loans and Recaivables - Loans
and Advances to Cuslomers - Factoring Transaclions™ reflecs the porticn of the unmatured deliversd
remiftances that has been paid 1o the assignor, Also, pursuant o Bank of Spain reguiations, the unmatured
remitiances delivered by the assignors retating to unfinanced recourss facloring transaciions, which amounted
i ELIR 184,751 thousand at 31 December 2007 (31 December 2006: ELIR 126,807 thousand), are included as
an off-balance-sheet itam under “Drawable by Third Partes” {Note 22).

in addition, the Company perdormad reverse (supplier} factoring {“confirming”) transactions in which the debi, on
which tha Company bears the bad deht risk, takes the form of invoicas approved by the debter and advancad in
full to tha assignor, The sforementioned transactions are recorded under “Loans and Receivabies - Loans and
Advances to Customers - Reverse Facloring Transaclions” (Note 8.3). Reversa factoring remittances which are
not advanced are recognised as off-batance-shiee! ftems and amountad o EUR 2,450,572 thousand at 31
Decembar 2007 (31 December 2008: EUR 2 26 500 thousand) (Note 20). Certain reverse facioring contracts
give the dablor tha option of repurchasing his own faciored receivables and of sharing through allowancas the
revenues from the factored remittances. These alowances were recognized under “Interest Expense and Similas
Charges" in the accompanying mcome statements (Note 24).

Additionally, the Company performs facioring transactions known as “ovarall factoring”, which is charmactessed
mainly by the establishment of an overall Emil per assignor, taking on board the receivables on which the
Company bears the bad detk risk or makes advances on sccount and the establishment of a threshold below
which this risk will rof be covered. These fransactions are recogrised under “Lopans and Recehwables - Loans
and Advances to Customers - Factaring Transactions™ (Note 8.3).

sinca the Company ganeeally has the intention to held these transactions 1o final maturty, they are recognised
at amorlized cost in the batance sheet,

interest samed on hose assets, which is calculaled using the effective interost method as defined above, is
recogrised under “interest and Similar Income” in the accompanying income statements, The axchangs
diffarences an secunties included in this category denominaled in currencies ather than the suro ara recognised

as st forfh in Mote 2-a.



1 Financial liabilities at amortised cost: this category includes the financial liabiies not included under
Financial Liabifiies Held for Trading or under Other Financial Liabilites at Fair Value through Prafit or Loss or

fhrotgh Equéty,

When funds are advanced, the advance amount is pad dirsctiy 1o the customer and the applcable interest and
facioring fees, if any, can be deductad. Howeves, If the Company does not advance any funds, the transaction
amourd i recognieed under “Financizl Lighilties at Amortised Cosl” in the accompanying balance sheats unii It

is paid in the customer when collected (Nole 12,

Additionally, “Finandal Liabilities at Amorisad Cost in the acoompanying balance shests includes the amount
payahble to assignors in respect of the stipulated contractual deposit or of the unused portion.

Interest accruad on thesa Rabiliies, which s calculaled wsing the effective intarest method as defined above, ia
recognised under "Interest Expense and Similar Charges™ in the accompanying incomo statements. Tho
axchange differencas on securities included in this categery denominated i currencias other than the eurd are

racognised as sol forth In Mote 2-a.

Impairment financial assets
Definition

A financial asset s considered to be impaired — and therelore its carrying amount is adjustad io reflact the effect
of s impairment — when thers is objective evidence that events havie pccurmed which:

In the case of debt instruments (loans and debt securities), give rise to a negative impact on the future
cash Bows that were sstimated at the time the transaction was amanged.

« In e case of equity instruments, mean that the carrying amount of these instrurments cannot be
recoverad.

As a general rule, the camying amount of impaired financial instruments is adjusted with a charge io the
sonsolidated income staterment for the year in which the impairment becomes known, and the recovariea of
impairmant losses are recognized in the Incoma stalement for the vear in which the
impaimment s reversad or reduced, with the exception thal any recovery of previously recognized mmpairment
Insses for an investment in an equity instrument classified as available for sale which are not recognized through
profit or lass but recognized under the heading =yabuation Adjustments — Available for sale Financial Assels” in

the halance sheat

Balances are considercd 1o be impaired, and sccrual of the interest thereon is suspended, when thare ara
reasonzhie doubds that the balances will be recovered in full andiar the related nterest will be collected for the
amounts and on the dates initially agreed upon, taking inlo account the guarantees received by the entity 1o
assuse (in part or in full) the performance of ransactions. Amounts collected in relafion 1o impaired loans and
receivables are used to recognize the refated accrued interest and any excess amount is used to rxduice the

principal not yel peid.
When the recovary of any recognized amount is considered to be remote, this amount is removed from the

consobdated batance shest, without prejudice o any actions taken by the antity in arder to collect the amount
uniil thetr fights exBinguish in full through expiry, forgheness ar for ofher reasons,



Caleutation of impairment financial assets

The impairment on financial assels |s cetermined by type of instrument and the category where is recognized, as
Tollowe:

impairmont of debt Instruments carried at amortized cost:

Impairment losses determined individually

The quaniification of impairment josses of the assets classifed &5 impaired is done on an mdividual basis in
which customers in the amount of their oparations is equal o or excseds €1 million.

The amaunt of the impalment losses incured on these instruments relates o the positive difforence betwaen
thelr respective camying amounis and the present values of their enpecied Tubure cash flows.

The following is 1o be taken inlo consideration when esfimaling the future cash fiows of debt Instruments:
All the amounts that are expacted o be obtained over the residual fife of the instrument; including,

where appropriate, those which may result from the guarantses provided for the instrument {afer
deducting the costs required for foreciosure and subsequent sale).

»  The various types of risk 10 which each instrument is subject.

& The circumstances in which collections will foreseeable be made.

Thess cash flows are discounted using the original effective interest rate, If a finandial instrument has a variable

inlerest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss s the current effective rate determined under
the contrect

As an exception to the rule described above, the markel value of quoted debt instruments is decmed o be a fair
astimate of the prasent value of their future cash flows.

Impatrment losses determined collectively
The quantification of impairment losses is determined on a collective basis in the following two cases:

Assets cassified as impaired of custemers in which the amount of their cperations Is less than €1 million.

Aszed portfolio not Impalred but which presents an inharent l0ss.

To estimate the collective loss of credit risk cormesponding to opemtions with residant in Spain, the BBVA uses
the paramelers set by Annax [X of the Circular 4/2004 from Bank of Spain on the basa of its experence and the
Spanish banking sector information in the quantification of impairment losses and provisions for Imsolvencies for
credit risk, These parametsrs will be used as far as the Bank of Spain validates inlermal models based on

hisiorical expenience of the Bank.



Foliowing s a descripfion of the methodalogy 1o estimate the collective loss of credit rish:

The debt instrumants, whoever the obiigor and whatever the guarantee or enflataral, that have past-dus amounts
with mose than Hres months, shall be anatbyzed individually, laking info account the age of the pasl-due
amounts, the guarantess or collateral provided and the economit situation of the customer and the guarantors,

In the case of unsecured ransactions and taking inlo account the age of the past-dus amounts, the allowance
percantages are a5 fllow;
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Up to B mondhs betwenn 4.5% and 5.3%
Ower & months and up to 12 months between 27.4% and 27.8%
Crenr 12 monlhs and up o 18 medths betwaen BO.5% and 55.1%
Crear 18 momths and up to 24 mosths between S53.3% and 95.8%
Civar 24 months 100%

2 i NCE or i Ice

The debl instrumeants, whoever the obligor and whatever the guarantee oc collateral, that do not have individuaghy
obiective of impairment are coliectivaly assesses, including the assals in a group with similar credit risk
charactaristics, sector of aciivity of the deblor or the type of guaranies.

The allowance parcentagas of hedge are as follows:

Meagligible risk: 0%

Low risk: 0.20% - 0.75%
Medium-bow sk 0,509 - 1.88%
Medium rsk: 0.59% - 2.25%
Mediurmni-high risk: 0.6868% - 2.50%
High riskz 0.83% - 3.13%

b} Investments

This ilem in the accompanying balance sheets includes the Company’s ownership inferest in the share capital of
Telefdnica Factoring Mexico, 5.4, de C.V. (Nole 9).

This investment is measurad at acquisition cost, nel of impairment losses, i applicable.

Pursuant to Bank of Spain Circutar 472004, of 22 December, when there is evidence of mpairmant of
investments, the impairment amount is esimaled as the negative dfforenco bebwecs the recoverabls amouwnt
{calcutated as the higher of fair value of the Investment less costs to sall or value in usa; value in use iz definad
as the present value of the cash flows expecied o be recaived from Ine investmant in the form of dividends and
those resuifing from is sale or other disposal) and the camrying amount. Impaisment losses on thess invesimants
and reversals of impairment losses are charged and credited, respectively, to “Impaiment Losses (Net)” in the

incame stetemant



£} Recognition of income and expenses

The most significant crileria used by the Company 10 recognise s income &nd expenses are surnmarisad as
follows: 1

Inferest income, inferast expanses and similar fems:

and similar items are recognised on the basis of their

As a genesal nde, interest Incoma, interest expenses
ofher companies are recognised as incomo when the

pesiod of accrual Specifically, dividends recaived from
Company's right fo recelve them arises.

Hewevar, when a debt instrument is deemed to be impaired individually or is included in a group of instruments
that are impaired bacause they have payments more than thres months past dus, the recognition of accrued
interest in the income statement s suspended. This interest s recognised as income, when collecied, as a

revarsal of the: relaled impairment losses.

Commissions, fees amd sfmifar fems

Fes and commission ncoma and @xpanses are recognised in the Incoma slatemeant using criteria hat vary
according to their nature, The mast significant fee and commission ibems are as oliows:

Those arising from fransaclions or services that are provided over a period of tme, which are
pecognised over the life of thesa transactons or sernvices.

Thosa relating to a service provided in & single act, which are recognised when the single acl is camied
oart.

Non-firance incomea and axpensas:
These are recogrised for accounting purposes on an acoru=l basis.

d) Paost-employment benafits and other commitments to amployeas

mling criteria relating to the commitments io ampiovess,

Foliowing is 2 description of the most significant accou
ts, of the Bank and branch abroad (Note 14).

related tn post-employment benefita and other commitmen
Commitmants valuation: assumptions and gainsflosses recognition

The present values of the commitments are quaniifisd on a case-by-case basis. The valuation method wsed for
current employees [s the projected unil credit method, which views each year of sendce as glving risa o an
addifional unit of banefit antilement and measwes geach unit saparabely,

in adopting the actuarial assumptions, it is taken inlo sccount that;
«  They are unblased, in that thay are neither imprudent noe gxcassively consarvalive.

»  They are mutually compatible, reflacting the economic refationships between factors such as inflabion,

sales of salary increase and discount rates.

The future kevels of salares and benefits are based on market expactalions at the baiance shiel date
for the period over which the ebligations are t be satited.

The discount rate used is determined by referance 1o market yiekds at the balance sheal date on high
queality corporate bonds,

Actuarial gains o losses arsing from differences between the sctuarial sssumplions and what had aclually
ncoufred, were recognizad in the incomea statements. The bank did not use the "eorridor approach”.



Post-smployment benefits

- Panslons
Post-employment benefits inciuda dofined contribution and defined obligation commiimants.

Defined contribution commilrsents

the amounts of thess commitmendis are determined, on a case-by-cese basis, as a percentage of certain
remunaration items andéor a5 a pre-established annual amount. Tha current contributions made by the Company

for defined contribution relirement commitments, which are recognized with a charge io the heading “Persannel
Expenses — Contributions to examal pension funds® in the accempanying income shatements (Motes 14 and

7).
i mmiiments

The Company has defined benefit commitments for permanant disability and death of cument employecs and
early refirees; for death of cerfain retired employees; and defined-benedit retirament commilments appécabla

anly 1o certain groups of serving employees (unvested benefils), or eary retined employees (vested benefis) and
of retired employess (sngeing benefits). Defined benedit commiments are funded by insurance confracts and

internal provisions,

Eniities ihat have covered their pension commilments with Insurence policies written by entities forming part of
the group shall recognise thosa cornmitments as follows:

{i Pension commitments to employees shall be recorded as pension provisions.
() The insurance policy shall ba recorded on the asset side as an insurance contract linked to

{iif} The expense for the period shall be reconded in the item *personnel axpanses” net of the amount
relating to the insurancs conlracts.

- Post-employment welfare benefits

Tha Bank has welfars benefit commitments the effects of which extend beyond the retirernent of the employess
entiled & the benefits. These commitments relate to cortsin curent employess and refirees, depending upon

the employes group to which fhey balong,

Tha presant vahues of the vested obligations for post-employment wealfare benefits are quantified on a case-by-
case basis, They are recognized in the heading “Provisions - Funds for Penslons and Similar Obfigations” in the
accompanying balance sheats (Mote 13) and they are charged to the heading “Parsonngl expanses — Othar

personnel expenses” in the accompanying income statements (Nots 27).

Other commitmeants to employess

The Bank Iz obliged to deliver partially or fully subsidised goods and servicas. The mest significant employes
weolfara benafits grantad, in iefms of the type of compensation and the evanl giving fse o the commitmenls ane
lnans o employees, [ife insuranca, study aid and long-senice bonuses.

The present vaiues of the vested obligations for commitments with parsonned are quantified on a case-by-case
basis. They are recognized in the heading “Provisions - Funds for Pensions and Similar Oblgaticns” in the

accompanying balance sheots (see Note 13). The post-employment welfars benefils delivered by the Bank to
active smployees are recognized in the heading *Personnsl expenses — Other personnel expenses” in the

accompanying income stalements [see Note 2T).
Other commitmants for current employess accrue and are settied on & yearly basis, it is not necassary to record
a pravision in this conneciion.
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&) Translation differences

runctional Surancy:

The Company's funciional currency is the euro. Therafore, ail balances and iransactions denominated in
currancies other than the euro are doemed to be denominated in Toreign currency”,

The datal at 31 Dacember 2007 and 2006 of the equivalent suro value of the main asset and lability balancas
demominated in faraign cirmency, by ilem, Iz as follows:
Thousands of Euras

ASSETS

Loans and recelvables 1,434
Pound sieding 151
LS dollar a5a
Yen 325
Available-for-sale financlal assets 247
Brasilian real 247
invesiments -
Mexican peso -
LIABILITIES

Financial liabilitles at amortised cost 1,434
Pound starfing 151
US dollar o5&
Yen 325

Transiation of foveigs curmency balances:
Fareign currency transaclions perfomed by the Company are iniially recognised in the financial statements at

the equhalent eure value, translated using the exchange ralas prevailing at the ransaction date. Subsequently,
the Company transiates the forsign currency manetary balances o its functonal cumency using the closing

exchamngs ratos.
Exchargs rales

For the purpose of pregaring the financial statements, foreign currency balances ware fransiated 1o euros, taking
inilo accound the aforementioned critaria, at the exchange rates published by the Eurcpean Central Bank.

fil Tangible assats
Property, plant and equipment for own use includes asssts held by the Company for cument or fulure use which

are oxpacted 10 be used over more than one year, Property, plant and equipment for own use Ig presentad in the
halanee sheat gt acquisition cost —tha fair value of any consideration given plus the aggregate cash payments

made or committed—, less:

1. The relaled accumulaied depreciation, and

2. Any estimated impairment losses (net carying amount higher than recoverable amount).

Depreciation is calcutated, using the straignt-ina mathed, on the basis of the acquisition cost of the: gssats laes

helr residual value. The land on which the bulidings and other structures stand has an indafinite e and,
therefong, is not deprociated.
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The tangible assel depreciation charge is recognised In the income statement and s caloulated basicaily using
the following depreciafion rates (based on the average years of estimated usaful lifa of the various assets)

Buildings and siricthses
Computer hardware

The Company assessas at the ropoding date whether thare is any intemal or ectemal indication that a tangihla
assel may be impaired (Le. ils carrying amount exceeds #s recoveradle emount). If this is the case, the carmying
amount of the asset is reduced to s recoverable amount and future depreciation charges are adjusted in
proportion o the new remaining usedul fife andfor to the revised camying amount.

Simitarly, if there Is an indication of a recovery in the valus of a tangible asset, the Company recognises the
reversal of the impairment loss recognised in prior porods and adjusts the future depeeciation charges
accordingly. In no circumstances may the reversal of an impalmment loss on an assel raise its carrying amount
abave that which it would have I no impairment logses had baon recognised in prior yaars.

Upkeep and mainkenance expenses ralating to property, plant and equipment for own use are recognised 25 an
erpenss in the year in which they ars i

g} Tax esseis and lizkiliies

The income lax expense is recognised in the income stetement, excepl when It results from transactions the
gains or losses on which zre ecognised directly in equily, in which case the income tax is also recognised in

ety

The cument income fax expense is caloulated as the sum of the current (ax resulling from application of the
appropriate tax rale o the taxable profit for the year (net of any deductions allowable for tax purposes). and of
the changes in deferred tax assets and Eabilities recognisad in the income statement.

On 28 November 2005, Law 35/2006 on Persenal Income Tax and Partially Amending the Corporation Tax, Non-
Rossdent Income Tax and Wealth Tax Laws wes published. This Lew, which will come into effect on 1 January
2007, establishes, inter alia, & reduction in the standard tax rale for corparation tax purposes to 32.6% for tax
parinds beginning on or after 1 January 2007 and to 30% for tax periods baginning on of after 1 January 2008,

“Income Tax” includas the amounts charged and credited to the Income statement (sse Nete 18) in connection
with the income taxes accrued in the current year and arising from adjusiments o the amounts recognised in

QRO YEaTS,
Deductible temporary differences, adsing from differences between the camying amolint and the tax base of an
assel or liabiity Bem, and tax credit and tax loss carmy forwards give rise to deferred tax assets or Eabilifies.

Deferred tax assets and liabiiiies ara calculated by applying to the temporary difference or to the related tax
credit and tax loss camy forward the tax rates at which they are expected to he racoverad or setled.

The deferad lax assels and liabilities recoanised are reassessed periodically in order o ascertain whother they
still exist, and the appropriate adjestments are mada on the basis of the findings of the analyses performed.
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h} Provisions

Provisions are prasent obligations arising frem a legal or conlractual raquiremant, from valld expeciations
creatad by the Company in thind paries regarding the assumption of certain types of responsibilities or fram the
virlual cartainty as to the future course of regulation in particutar respects, especially proposed new |egisistion

that the Coenpany cannot avoid,

shoel when each and every one of the following requirernents is mat:
ulling from a past event and, at fhe balance shast date, & is more Brely
setilad; it is probable that 1o settle the cbligation the Company will
liable estimate can be made of the amount of

Provisions are recegniaed in the balance

the Company has a present obligation res
than not that the obligation will have to be
hava to give up resources embodying economic benefits; and a e

the abligation,
il Termination banefits

Terminafion bonefiis must be recognised when the Company has underfaken i teminale he |labour
ampioyment of employeas under a formal datailed employee termination plan. Thers are no redundancy plans

making It necessary fo recognise a provision in this conneclion.
Ji  Cash flow statemoant
The following tarms are used in the cash iow statemants with the meaning s speciived:

1. Cash flows: inflows and outfliows of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-lam, highily liquild invesiments
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2, Operating sctivifies: typical credit instilution activities and ofher activilies that are not inveating or financing
aciivibes.

3. Investing activities: the acquisition and disposal of long-term assels and other investments not included in
cash and cash equivalents.

4. Financing activities: activities that result in changes in the size and composition af the equity and bomowings
of the Company that are not aperating acthvities.

3. Distribuiion of nof prodit
The proposed distribufion of nel profit for 2007 ihat will be submitted for approval by the sharehoiders at the
Annual Ganeral Meeting iz as follows:

Thousands of Euros
T T N AT B

o b e R SRR SR
2007 et pr
Distribution to:

Woluntary rasens
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Remuneration of directors -

sanior pxecutives

In 2007 and 2006 the Company's Board mambers did not eam or receive any salares, attendance fees or other
remungration and the Company oid not grant any advances or loans or have any pension or life insurance

commitments o curent o former Board mambers.

Remuneration of senlor exocutives -

The salary recelved in 2007 by the Company's senior executive officer amountad to EUR 78 thousand,

Datall of the directors’ investments in companies with similar business activities and performance by

directors, as independent professionals or as employees, of similar activities.

Pursuant ko Arficle 127.3 of the Spanish Companias Law, introduced by Law 26/2003, of 17 July, which amends
Sempities Market Law 24088, of 28 July, and the Spanish Consolidated Companies Law, in order to reinforcs
the fransparency of lisied companies, following i 2 detail of the companias engaging in an actvty thal is
identical, similar or complementany io the activity thal constistes the company object of the Company and of e
Banco Bilbas Vizcaya Argentara Group, in which the members of the Board of Direclors own, direclly or

indiracily, eoguily intarests,

Chwngrshi
o imareat” | Funcins
.JEMEF 'u"&'gd}'ﬂ- Et&vﬁ:: E‘-L-l-'!'la BEVA, S.A Banking 14,1649 Orfficer
Canos Olivares Sénchez BEVA, 5.A Bardang 2404 Oifiicar
Jose lgnacio Lopaz-Peres Paramo BEVA, 5.4, Banking B, 141 Oifficar
Jose Agustin Antdn Burgos BEVA, S.A, Benking 13,768
Banco de Sebadell, 5.4  Banking 2,000 A
Banco Popular, 5.4 Banking 2,000
Hanesio, S.A. Banking 2,000
M® dal Mar Rodrigo Casanova BEVA, S.A Banking 3,105 Officar
Ellaz Saler Vives BBV A, 5.5 Banking T i
M* de! Carman Cuerel Basza BBVA, 5.4, Banking 2,134 Ofiicer
Emiliano Salcines Zugasti BEVA, 5.4, Earking 1,200 Hfices
Ju=n José Moreno Semana BEVA, S5.A. Banking 5.538 Crficar
Femando Coloming Bamusco BEVA, O.A. Banking sl -

Algo, pursuant fo the sforemenfionsd Law, sel forth below are the activilies camed on, as independent
professionals or as empioyess, by the varous members of the Board of Directors that are identical, simitar or

complementary lo the activity that constitutes the company object of the Company:

b e TG 2 Fumnction or
i . ‘Owner Entity position
L : g - BEVA, 5.A Cficer
Jivner Virgilio Estoves Durila Telefénica Factoring, 5.4, Giractor
Telefdnica Facioring, 5.A. Director
Carlos Ofivaras Sénchez Telefdnica Factoring do Brasil Lida, Digector
Tedafdnica Facionng Mexico, 5.4, da GV, DCiresclor
Josa lgnacio Lopaz-Parea Paramd BEVA, 54 Dfficar
Josa Agustin Anidn Burgos BEVA, 3.4, Chficer
M? ded Mar Redrigo Casanova BEVA, S.A Oiificer
I® dal Carman Cuerel 2agza BEVA, SA. Officar
Emiliano Salcinas Zugast BEVA, .4, Oifficar
Juan Jogé Moreno Semana BBVA, B.A. Officar
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5, Risk exposurg
6.1. Interest rate risk managament -

The Company aclively manages its interes! rate fsk in prdar to minimise, and in certaln cases elimnaie, the
possible impact of changes in marke! Interest rales on He investment and, therafore, on the nat intenes? income

rapodted in the income statement.
For this purpose several dearly differsntiated measures are taken, ngEmahe

1. For certain transactions, the funds required for payments fo cuslomers are raised through tha BEWVA
Treasury Degartment rather than using the central account (average of 30-ciay Euritark,

The Company requests the funds required from the Treasury Daparment far the time required for the
transaction concemed, thersby closing the transaction price and. theredore, fully eliminating any possibli

intarest rate risk which might anses,

The paramelers ghing rise to this measure are as follows: a) very tight spreads, b} very long financing
perinds for cartain transactions, and c} very large amount nvestments. Obwiously, thase paramelers are
considered provided that the financing method is not in arrears and that their referenca rate s the
cantral accourd, since in this case there would be no risk in this connection.

2, Daly assessment of the interest rale performance. Follow-up of the Europaan Central Bank's expectatons
in respect of the foresesable short- and medium-term inferest rata poficy. Monthly analysis of the

Company's average spread on iis contracts,

3. On the basis of the foregoing, the Company considers the possibility of borrowing funds from BEVA'S
Treasury Department in order to efiminate the possible interest rate risk on carain of the Company's
invastment aggregates, divided info 15-day tranches once the weighted average interost rate applied o
cusiomers has been calculatad for these figures.

The Company has an outstanding credil facllity through BEVA with a limd of EUR 2,500,000 thousand for thasse
transactions. The balance drawn down at 31 December 2007 amountad to EUR 1,268,567 thousand.

5.2, Credit risk exposure -

The Company's maximum credit ek exposure amounted to EUR 5,506,074 thousand at 31 December 2007, up
25.58% on 2008 year-end. The breakdown of these figurss betwean the two pmducts managed for the BEVA
Group shows that the decrease in reverse facloring with respect io 2006 was 23.6% —this product concentrales
41.7% of the iotal risk-, whereas factoring —which accounts for 58.3% of the total- increased by 27.4%.

Thie customer credit risk is brokan down a5 follows:

Thousands of Euras
i Heserve Factoring Risk | 500 o 1 Factorifig Risk” 1 00
P IIEME:H T :'-_'_.I' | zq'lm it ‘
: i 2 204 531 ieHE 3115672
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AL 31 December 2007, the total past-due balance amounted to EUR 53,47% thousand as a result of the spacial
feahmres of the products managed by ke Company and of the Bank of Spain regulstions in this conneciion,
which affect the recording of provisions. A distinclion must be drawn between past-due balances receivabie from
the privale sacior and those receivable from the public sector. The former must be provisioned on the basis of
lhe age of the past-due balances (based on the schedule set by the reguiator), whamas those relaling 1o the
public sector are nol provisioned. Therefors, the detail of the aforementioned past-due balance is a3 Tollows:

Thousands of Euros

 Fiovisich

L

Pt
it

ATy | it | T el P ".'.. "
Private Sector

Public Sector

Ceniral gorermmeant -
Autonomotis community govenmeanis
Local governments

Sodal securiy

Total

However, these past-dues can ba deamed to be technlcal non-performance since they arise mainly from the
long payment periods of the public sector rather than from an aclual non-performance which may enlail a ioss

{or the Company.
Moteworlhy is the large amount of the past-dues from autonomous communlly governmeanis which arses from
the fadoring fransactions performed on vasious autonomaous communily agancies managing the pubsc heallh

care system, The pasi-duas refate mainly to the long payment periods of sorme of thesa agencies, The reasons
are maultiple depending on the autonomowes community concemead, but they are summansed a3 follows:

«  Long intermal administrative procasses at each health agency, which means that the invoice accounting
period is between 50 and 180 days.

Onca the involce has bean accounted for it must be approved and the approval period is quite long
{btwnzen B0 and 360 days).

Finally, a budget itlem must be assigned to the expendilure, and furnds must be evailabla to make the
related payments,

Consaqueantly, the total pasi-dus rafio was 0.77% at 31 Decambar 2007, whareas that relating only to the private
seclor was 0.11%, This gave rise to an Increasa with respect to 2006, when the past-due ralio was 1.12% and

that of the private sector was 0,13 %a.

The total specific provisions for credit sk recognised by the Company amounted o EUR 7,518 thousand, T7%
of which relate to pasi-dues from the private secior and 6.2% relale b pasi-tusas fram the public sector,
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8. Cash and balances with central banks

The breakdown of the balance of "Cash and Balances with Central Banks®™ In the batance sheets @ 31
Diecember 2007 and 2006 is as fallows:

Thousands of Eums
RE et gmﬁ
Cash 2
Balances with ihe Bank of Spain ]
Tatal M '!I a2

ilablg-for-sale financial assats

The hreakdown of this heading in the accompanying balance sheets by lisling is as follows:
'l'h-nusm:l-lz._ nf E_u_rus

) 16 s - -1'_
i e K

By Iis_ﬁng status

Linlisted 247
Lags- Impairmant logs {44}
203

Tho balanca of “Avallable-for-Sale Financial Assets - Other Equity Instrumenis® in the sccompanying balance
gneels al 31 Dacembaer 2007 and 2006 ralated to a 10.25% infersst in the share capital of Telefdnica Facionng
oo Brasil, Lida, These securities are nol listed,

The dividend sccrued during 2007 is recorded under the heading "come fram equity mstruments”™ in tha
income statement and amounted o 240 thousand euns.

8. Leans and receivables
8.1, Breakdown

The breakdown, by type of financlal Instrument, of the balance of "Loans and Recebrablzs® in the balance sheels
a1 31 December 2007 and 2006 s as follows:

Thousands quurui

Loans and advances 1o credit inslitutions
Loarns and advances o cusiomers
CHber financal assats

Less Impaimeant lossas
Taotal

5,408,567
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&.2. Loans and advances o credit institufions

The breakdown, by bype of financial instrument, of the balance of *Loans and Advances 1o Credit [nstitutions™ in
the balance shaals at 31 December 2007 and 2008 is 25 follows:

Thousands of Euras
| 2006

Tima dE;pl::ﬁi‘l‘E-
Demand

Loss- Impairmeni lsses
Taotal

8.3. Loans and advances {0 customers

The breakdown, by loan lype and sfatus, of the balance of “Loans and Advances 1o Customears™ in the balance
shests at 31 December 2007 and 2008, disregarding the balance of impairment nsses, iz as follows:
Theusands of Eures

-ﬁy lzxan type and status
Facioring and reserva factoring transactions
Qlher farm loans

Receivable on demand and other

Impaired assels

Less- Valuaion sdjustrients- Accrued interest
Total

The breskdown, by type of sk and transaction type, of the "Facloring and Reverse Facloring Transactions®
account in the foregoing delail at 37 Decamber 2007 ks as follows:

Type of risk-
Recourse fransactions 243 885
Non-recourse transaclions-
Im auros 0,164 8B4
In foraign cumency 1,434
5,410,203
Tranzaction type-
Facioring 2679524
Reseave facioring 2 204 539
Orhearall Tacioring 435148
5,410,203
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The breakdown, by aciivity secior of the borrower, of “Loans and Advances 1o Customers™ at 31 Decambear 2007

dizreganding valuabion adjustments, is as folows:

Thousands of Euras
Non-Resident

Residant
Bomowers Bormowears Tk
Fublic ercioe 1,771,554 . 1,771,954
Manutaciuring 1,358,511 27T B0 1,837,313
Feal estabe and construction 1,688,333 1,668,333
Retalling and financal senices BO0, 203 - 800,203
Clifpesr 1,007, 562 - 1,007 . 562
Total 6,627 563 - 6,905,367

Ther beeskdown, by aclivity sedor of the borrower, of “Loams and Advances to Customers™ at 37 Decamimer

2008, disregarding valuation adjustments, 5 as follows:

Thousands of Euros
' BE@!_EEH'H‘[ =k 'H IJ_I'I_-.:E?III:EEIE bk Tﬂﬂi
il ; . :Borrowers .- . Bomowers. . | Fh :

Public sector Sa6 a5 . fEG, B52
Manuiacturing 1,221,226 151,780 1,373,005
Raal estate and corstrection 1,595,692 - 1,586,682
Retaiing and financial services 735,013 = 735,013
Cehear B75, 785 - BT5,765
Total 5,495,048 151,780 5,547,328

The breakdown, by geographical area, of "Loans and Advances 1o Customers” at 31 Decambear 2007 and 20046,

disragarding valuation adjesiments, is as Tollows:

Thousands of Euros
iR 2007 L5 F2006
Europe 5,515,505
Uniled States 28,645
Latin Amarica 1,634
Rest of the world 1,524
Total 5,547,328

Mote 20 ko the financial statements contzins & datail of the schaduled maturties of thesa assats at 2007 and

2000 year-and,
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8. 4. Impaired assets and impairment losSes
The changes in 2007 and 2008 in “Loans and Advances o Customars - Impained Assals” ware a5 fallows:

Thnusandf‘ _E_urps

Balance al beginning of yea 45,003
Additions 202 441
Revarsals {191.781)
Wiritten-off assels

Balance at end of year

The changes in the balance of the allowance for iImpaiment losses on “Loans and recelvables” were as folows:

Thnusands_ of Euros

= b S TR - =
i7 it e

1 A LR A o L =
L T, E kAo ah g et e A .'.|'_|" LT

Bume-ﬂat haﬁi‘m:'nlng.n-:f year

Addiional impairment charged o income statement 11511

Reaversal of impaimeant chamed o incomea stalermant {3,200)

Write-off- Lize of provision {3,128)

Hher changes )

Balance at end of year 101,306
O which:

Individually assessed 2,403

Collectively assessed BB.D03
Of which:

By assat covered

Loans and advances o cuslomers 101, 308
of which:

By gecgraphical area

Ewrapa 101,508

Othars E

101,206

The mecovernies of balances previously writlan off amoanied 1o EUR 9 houwsand in 2007 and EUR 1 thousand in
2006 and are presented as a deduction of the batance of "impaiment Lossas (Met) - Loansand Recaivables™ in
the accompanying income stalements.

Financlal assets witten off In 2006 becausse theair recovery was doamed o be remole amaunted o ELIR 581
thousand in 2007 {3,127 thousand auros in 2006).

Az of December 31, 2007 financial income amounting b €7 howsand had accrued, bl was not rscanded In the
income statément because there were doublts regarding s collectablity (none inferest wes not acoued As of

December 31, 2006).



8, Investments

This heading @ the accompanyng balance sheets amounting to 547 thousand euros relates 1o an 24.33%
intarest in the share capital of Telaitnica Fachring Mexico, 5.4 de CV. acquirad on January 10, 2008, Thesa

seoutifies are not Bated,

There i5 no impairment ogses during 2007.

10, Tangible azsals

The changes in 2007 and 2006 in Tangibke Assets” in the accompanying balance sheets, ifemised by type of
assel, ward as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Cost, nel of sllowance-

Balance at 1 January 2006 M 304 BOZ
Acdiiions 14 - H
Retiramenis - - .
Balance at 31 Decamber 2006 516 ) | BT
Addilions 41 47 aa
Retiremerils = - .
Balance at 31 Decembear 2007 557 348 ans
Accumulaied depreciation-

Balance at 1 January 2006 (bl {253) {ri3)
Addiions {29) {8) (34)
Retflremeants g X 3
Balance at 31 December 2006 [478) {262) (T40}
Additions {31) (12 {43
Rediramaniz - -

Balance at 1 December 2007 (509} {274} {TH3)
Balance at 31 December 2006 34 39 T
Balance at 31 December 2007 48 T4 122

Fully depreciated assels amounied to EUR 550 thousand at 31 Decamber 2007 (530 thousand suros as af 31
Uecamoer, 2006]. The Company carmies on is besiness activiies basicaly in properties owned by Banco Bilbap
Vizcaya Argentada, 5.A., and & rental expense of EUR 120 thousand was recognised in this respect in 2007

(2129 thousand asz of 31 Decembar, 2008).
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11. P d acoruod inco rid dofe Incoma

Tha breakdown of the balances of "Prepeymenis and Accrued Income® and “Accread Expenses and Deferred
inmoma” in the accompanying balance sheats waa as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Gidng 2 e ooy
Acsnles -

Prepaid cxpenses

Other propayments and acorued income

Total
Liabilitios -

Unmatured accnisd expenses
Diher accrued expenses and defemad Incoma

Total

12. _Financial llabilities at amortised cost

The breakdown of the balances of “Financlai Liabilities at Amortised Cost” in the eccompanying balance sheats
iz &5 follows:

Thousands ufEu'ua :

. u__: ity __"1:;= 3 ke T

Dapuslrs from credil Insttutions

Oihir financial BEabdilies
Factoring payables
Reverse factoring payables

Othar Bems

Total [EEEEAIAEAT 5,211,008

12.1. Deposits from credit institutions -

The breakdown, by type of transaction, of the balances of "Deposits from Credli instiutions” I the

actompanying balance sheets is as follovws:

R e e

Daposits wih agreed maturity 5015620
Other accounts 17,448
Valuation adjustments 12,659
Jotsl SR J0T  5.045.737
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Translation of financial staferments anginaly issued i Spanish and gripamd in sccovdance witl ganermly accounting
praciples Spai (see MNote 31). fn the event of a discrapancy, ihe Spanizh-engusge version provatls

BBVA FACTORING,

ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006 {Noles 1 (o 3)

ASEERS b et e U R
TASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS [Note
FINAMCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING
Loans snd advances o credit institulions
Moreey market ransactons through counterparty antitas
Loans and advances o aiher debioes
Dbt securities
Dilkat aquity inslrurmants
Trading defvaiives
Memarandurm ttame Losned and adwanesd as collateral
CITHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Loans sand advances o credit institubons
Money market imnsactions through counterparty entiles
Loans and advances to ather debions
Dabt seoyriies
il aquity Instnurments
Memomndum ilem: Loansd and advanced as ooltatesal
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINAMCLAL ASSETS (Mote T)
Dbl metrumanis
Cihar equity instrsmenls
Marmorandum Bem: Loaned and advanced as collatarsl
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES {Note 8)
Leans and achances to credit instiluions !
Monsy market fransaciions through counterpany enities
Loans and advEnces o customens
sbit instruments
Ciher finenclal assels
Memomndum fem: Loaned and sdvanced as coliabesal
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS
Memomndum ikem: Losned and advanced as collalberal
CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLIO0 HEDGES OF
INTEREST RATE RISK
HEDGING DERIVATIVES
NOM-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Lesmins and advances io credl institutions
Loans and advances o other dehliors
Dbl Instuments
Equily instrumsnts
Tangibls ssmais
Dher aggals

{*) Presented for compsirison purpasoes only.
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ASSETS {Contimation) ©
NVESTMENTS (Mote 9)
Assndates
Joindly confrolled entitlas
Group enlifiss
IHNSURANGE CONTRACTS LINKED TO PENSIONS (Mofa 14}
TANGIBLE ASSETS (Note 10)
Property, plant and equipment for own use
Investment property
Odhar assels leased out under an operating kease
Memarandum fem: Loansed and advanced a5 collataral
INTAMGIELE ASBETS
Goodwill
Cither intangible assets
TAX ASSETS (Note 19)
CuATen
Diaterred
PREFAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME (Mote 11)
QOTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSGETS

(") Presented for comparison purposes only.

The accompanying Naotes 1 to 31 are an intagral part of the balance sheet as of December 31, 2007.



Transision of fnancis stalomants cginally fopwed in Spanish and prpanmnd i accondance with enarsly aooainting
princinkes Spain (mee Mofe 31). in the pvant of a discapancy, e Spanizh-snguage varslon prevalls,

BBVA FACTORING,

ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006 (MNotes 1 1o 3)
Thousands af Exros.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADIMN
Kionay marke! operations thisegh countsrparties
Cusborar daposts
Dabd cerlificates including bonds)
Trading derivatives
Shart posliions
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Deposits from credit Instiuticns
Deposals nom olhar credion
Dabt cartificates {including bonds)
FIMANCIAL LIARILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH EQLATY
Dsposis from crac instinbons
Daposils fmm ciher ceditors
Dabd contificates (ncuding bonds)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTIZED COST (Nofe 12)
Deposits froan cemtral banks
Depasits from cradit naliutions
Money marked oparafions through counlarparties
Deposits from olivar cradions
Dbl cerificates {induding bonds)
Subardinzies labiiies
Oither financial lubillies
CHANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF THE HEDGED ITEMS 1IN PORTFOLID HEDGES OF
INTEREST RATE RISK
HEDGING DERIVATIVES
LEABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH MON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Depasits Trom olsr credilors
Ditnes Esdiffiag
PROVISHDNG (Mobe 13)
Prosisions for pensions and sémilar obégations
Prowisions for e
Provigions for contingen! exposiess and commitments
Orthar provisions
TAX LIABILITIES [Kote 19)
Cusreil
Dipderred
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME [Hote 11)
OTHER LABILITIES
CAPITAL HAVING THE MATURE OF FINANCLAL LIABILITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES

1 Pressnbed for comparison pueposes only.

2007
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LLABILITIES AND EQUITY/(Continuation}
VALUATION ADJUSTMENTS
Ayaiabie-for-=sle inancial eesels
Financial liabiiies at fair vahee fwough equily
Cash ficw hedpes
Hedges of net imestments in foreign oparations
Excharge diferencos
MNom-cusrenl asscts held for =le
STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Capital (Note 10G)
issumed
Unpaid and uncaled (=)
Share pramium (Hol= 17)
Rasersas (Hobe 18]
Arcumuinlad reserves (lossas)
Fetained eamings
Other equity insiruments
Equity componernt of compound financal Instrumenta
Crher
Loss: Treasury shares
Income atiribuied to the groap
iass: Dividends gnd remuneration
TOTAL ECHATY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

R TR TR =iz i T I
MEMORANDUM ITEMS -
CONTINGENT EXPOSU
Financial guarantaes
Asspls marmarked far Gird-party coligations
Diner contingent exposires
CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS
Drawable by third parties
Oithar GElml'lrnmi:-
[*) Presenbed for companison puposes only.

The accompanylng Notes 1 to 31 ane an integral parl of the balance sheet as of Decembar 31, 2007,




Transiatien of fnancial slatements orginaly isswed i &mMﬂmmmeﬁnmmm
principins Spaiy [zee Mofe TT). n the avent of o discrepancy, e Spanish-anguage vorson prevals,

BBVA FACTORING,

ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.
INCOME STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006 {Notes 1 to 3}

Thowsansls of Euros
-:.I.!—-I.' o r ek i - - o T i 11 i O RILE | - - - : _ s “\. St Eﬂﬁ
e I R e A LTy U [ S Tt s e [k £ AR 2
WTEREST AN SIMILAR FCGRE [Fcte 23] MEEY 145060
113,006

WTEREST EXPENSE AND SIALAR CHARGES (Mol 24]
e on eguity Raving the nebae of a financal Gablky
Hhar

BICOME FROM EQUITY INSTRUMENTS {Mobs 25)

113

MET INTEREST IRCOME
FEE AND COMMISSION [MCOME (Mot 25)
EEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSES (Nobe 36}
GEAING OR LOSEES ON FINANCLIAL AISETS .ihl:l- LIABILITIES (HET)
Haid fo Irmding
Coner Tinansel Patruments ol air vailue through profit of Kas
foxilabln-forenale fisniisl aaseis
Loans aod recehabies
Crefesr
EXCHAMGE DIFFERENCES MET)
EROSS INCOME
OTHER OFERATING MCOME
FERSOMMEL EXPENGES [Mote 2T)
COITHER ALBAINESTHATIVE BXFENSES (Hols 28)
DEPRECIATION AND AMDRTIZATION
Targihie Assets (Mol 10}
intangitls Aisats
CITHER OPERATING EXPENSES
HET OPERATING INRCOME
IMPAIRKMENT LOSSES
Meliabip-fod-gade inancial pssels
Loans and recchables (o 5]
Hesoeto-makity ivmsiments
Mom-ourman] Aseets held dof gk
rrenp¥mens
Tangiie asssls
Goodwil

Dihar intngihis. asses
Othar asasls
PROVISION EXPEMSE (HET] (Mot 135}
OTHER GAING
Gains on oisnasal of ngdis eaanis
Gains on digres of invasimant
e [(Mota 25)
DTHER LOSSES
Locses on tispasal of tangile saants
Lixssirh an oispossl of invasiment
e (Mole 290
INCEWIE BEFORE TAX

HEOME EROM CORDEBARY ACTIVITIES
(HEAE FROM DESOONTIMNUED OPERATIONS MET)
INCOME FOR THE PERIDD

{*) Presented for compariscn purposes anly.

The accompanyving Motes 1 o 21 are an integral part of the income staternant for tha year ended
Decembar 31, 2007,



Fransiaiion of financisl statements origiraly sswed in Spanish and prepared in accordance with panaraly acCOLTNNG
principins Spai (fee Note 3L In the svan of & fiscrepmicy, ihe Spanfsh-Ianguags version pravals,

BBVA FACTORING,
ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.

STATEMENTS DF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND
2006

(Notes 1 fo 3)
Thousards of Euros

a1

2007 [l

]

MET INCOME RECOGHNISED DIRECTLY 1N EQUITY
Soilabie-for-aak finandal asseis
Rirealumfion gainsicsses
Amaunis transfemed o income slaiomant
Income tax
Reclassilications
Othier Bnancial Babiftias @t falr value
Reyauplion gainsiossas
Amouints fransfared o income staleaon
income o
Recipssifications
Camh Tioew hadgos
Bevaluation gainalossas
Amounts Fonsiamresd i incoimo statamant
AroiEls ransiered b tha infial carming amount of the hedged itsms
Incores s
Arcdassfications
Hadges of nel investment in foreign cpoerations
RevahBon gainefoases
Amounts tansferred bo income statement
Insoine fax
Exdhanges diffarencss
Treslabon gainsfosses
Amounts translamag I ncome siaEmant
Inoome Ex
Face-cumen assals hold for sads
Ravalualion gains
Amounts Fansfered o ncoema slalpment
Irscanmes b
Fecassilicalions
CONSOLIDATED INCOME FOR THE YEAR
Pubished consolidated incame lor fie year
Agpesirpenis dus 1o changes in sooounling podcy
Acfisstmesis made o comect eTars
TOTAL INCOME AND EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR

MEMORANDUM ITEM: EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS ALLOCABLE TO PRIOR YEARS
Dhie o chanpas in accounting policies

Siockhaider's Equity

‘iakiation adjusiments
Dhoae o efrors

Sapckholder's Equity

WaluaSan adjusirenls

) Presentad lor comparison purposas only.

The accompanying Motes 1 to 31 aré an Integrai part of the income stedement for the year ended
Depambar 31, 2007,



. s : . wilh ganeraly |
Translafion of Arancial shdfements onginally Ssved in Spmmmmn_mmrdmm ; accounding
privcipies Spain {see Nots 31). In the ovanf of @ dizcrepancy, the Spanizh-anglags version prevails,

BBVA FACTORING,
ESTABLECIMIENTO FINANCIERO DE CREDITO, S.A.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2006

(Notes 1 to 3}

Thousands

of Eras
i
2007 1

zﬁ:ﬁ: , 4

Conzoliduted profit for the year
Aelstment 1o proft
Deprecsytion of [Engible assets (+)
Amoriisation of ntangile assets (+)
Impairmant kesses et} | &~}
Prowision expenss (net) {+-)
GalnsfLossas an dispesal of tangible sagets (+-)
GainafLossas on dispossl of Fvestment (4=
Tames [+4-)
Ol pan=monibery Dems |+
Adjusied profil
Mt increaseidecreass in operaiing assais
Financial aaseds held for trading
Loans and advances o credil inslilLiions
WMWMIWW
Loans ard advances bo olbar deblors
it securities
Ciher aquity instrumants
Trading darivalives
Oilhear Bnancial assets at fair yvisiue Brough profl o IS
Loans and ackances o credit instilutions
Morey market ppemtions (hough counferparties
Loans and sdvances io ather dabiors
Dbt securities
Ciher squity nstrumants
snvmilabie-for-aak finencial asals
Clabd seourities
Ot ity Instrumanis
Loans and recengbies
Loans and advances 1o grodil instiudions
Manay marke aparations thiough counlempariies
Loans and advances io ather dabiors
Diebt sacurities
Ciiner inancial asscts
Dither operling sssets

i kK i 1 L

alafa]li]le

"} Presanied for companson purposes only.
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Mot qum n uprl‘aﬂm lhbmh“

Finaneal linbdities heid lor rading
Depoasis from anadt insSlions
taney markol aperafions [hmugh counilafpartias
Deposis Fom aher credinn
Dbl carifcates (induding bonds)

Trading dedvalives
Shet posilions

Cehar financsl ksblities &4 ber value through profit or kess
Dopesis hom credt instihitions
Deposts tom alher cradios
Dabi corificates finchiing bonds)

Flnandial Gabilties @t far valis theough egquity
Dagusls fnom cmc nslitulions
Deposts fom olhar Sedions
Dt cear@icates (Incliding bords)

Financial Habiitins meesuned &t amorised cost
Deposis karm caniral banks
wmmnm
Monoy marked cparations through couniepatas
Decpks from olbar odiors
Dl carifcates fincluding bands)

Crther financial kabiities

Ohar operating labilbes

Tatal net cash flows from operating activities (1)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
mm&hmmﬂmﬁam
Tangile g5als
Irtamgitie seeals
Helid-1gmeaturily invesimanis
Cithar linancial Rssets
Char assets.

Diheesfrrrants [+,
ﬁuwﬂ%pﬁﬂnﬂﬂn:mm
Tangibiz azsels
intangible SRR
Hesid-lo-matunty ivwesameants
Cihsar finmncial aisals
Cillvar Ba5eE5

Tatal net cash flows investing acthities {#)

{*} Presarnted for comparison puposes only,
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issumncn Fpdemplion of capal [+-}

Acquisition of pwn equity instruments (-}

Dinpasal uf cwn equity instments (+)

ispuEncaodemption of non-valing soulby Lmils {2

issumneaRedemnpticon of cdher gty instrurnants [#F]

Iﬁmﬂmﬁwmmmdzwwﬂwbﬁ

jsauanceRedemption of subsrdinaled Eabiltles(+-)

{sswmncaFedempion of other long-tarm Tabiilies [+-)

Divdendsinierast pakl (-

Ciiber #ams Falating i financing Sctiviias (-}

Total pet cash fiows from financing activities (3)

EFE:TWMMEW%EQHBMHDHMHE“WMEH

MET INCREASEDECREASE IN cASH OR CASH EQUIVALENTS [1#3+34d)

Cagh ar cash equivalents af beginning of yoar

Cash or cash equivalents at end of year

{*} Pressnled for comparison purpoSes onhy.
Thi accompanying Moles 1 to 31 are an integral part of the cash flow statement for the
December 31, 2007,

yaar andad



Trangistion of financial sEtements onginally lssucd in Spanish and prapared in accordance with penerally accepiad acoouning
prindiples in Spain (sae Mots 31} In fie event of & discrepancy, the Spanish-anguage version prevails

BBEVA Factoring,
Establecimiento Financiero de Credito, S.A.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

1. hasls of presentation of the financi ments an inf oM.

1.4, Introduction -

BEVA Factoring, Establecimienic Finandam de Cridito, 5.4 Mhe Company”) was incorporated in Bibao undar
tha name of Sociedad de Financiacion de Ventas a Plazo, 5.A. (SOFIVENSA) in March 1968, In May 1987 tha
Company’s name was changed o B.B. Facloring, S.A. In 1956, after the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Group was
ereated, the Company bacame BBV Factoring, S.A. In 2000 Argentaria Factoring, E.F.C.. 5.A. and Catalana de
Factaring S.A., E.F.C. were merged into BBV Facloring, 5.A., EF.C. with fhe dissolution withaut liquidation of
the first two companies. The name of the post-merger company was BBVA Facloring, EF.C.. SA. Th
transactions performed by Argentaia Factoring, EF.C., 5.A. and Calalana de Facloring, S.A., E.F.C. were
deamed to be performed for the account of the Company for acsounting purposes fram 1 January 2000,

The Company is regulated by the Spanish Companias Law 3/1954, of 14 April, which adapted Spanish cradil
institution segisiation to the Second Banking Coordination Direciive and infroduced other amendments 1o the
financial system, by Royal Decres 6021086, of 26 April, on the legal regime applicable to credit finance

astablishments (EFCs) and by octher provisions applicable o 1.

As required by the aforementionad Royal Decree 6921998, on 23 Octobar 1996, the Company was registered in
tive Bank of Spain's Special Register of EFCs.

The iyisws and other public information on the Company can be consulied at its registered office at o
Almogavares 185, 1°, Barcelona, Its company object, per s bylaws, is 1o engage in recoursa or non-recourse
facloning transactions and In complamentary acthities such as investigating and clagsifying its cliantsls,
recording accounts receivable and, generally, any other activity that facilitates the adminlstration, evalualion,
security and financing of the recelvables arising from domestic and international commarcial iransactions that

may be assigned ta it.

The Comgany balongs lo the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentsra Growp (Nole 18). The operating beanches
parform all the transactons relating fo business aliraciad through the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group's

ranch netaork.

The Company's financial statements for 2008 wera approved by the sharsholders at ihe Annual Ganeral Mealing
of the Company on 28 June 2007. The 2007 financial statemants of the Company have not yo! been approved
by Its sharsholdars at the Annual General Meatfing. However, the Company's Board of Directors considars Thal

the aforementioned financial stalements will be approved without any changes.



1.2 Basis of presentation of the financial statements -

On 22 December 2004, the Bank of Spain issued Circular 4/2004 an Putlic and Confidential Financial Reponing
Rules and Formats.

The purpose of the new accounting Circular is o modify the accounting system of Spanish credit instibtions and
to adapt it to the new accounting framework arising from the adoption by the Eurcpean Unian, through vadous
EU Regulations, of the Intemational Financial Reporiing Standards (EU-IFRS) in accordance with Regulation
(EC) no. 18082002 of the European Parllament and of tha Councd of 18 July 2002 on the application of

international accounling standards.

The Company's financial statements for 2007 were prapared by its directors (at the Board meeting on 268 March
2#007) from the Company's accounting records and are presented i accordance with the formats egstablished by

Bank of Spain Circular 42004, of 22 December, and. accordingly, they present fairdy the Company’s equity and
financkal position at 31 December 2007, and the rasulls of ils operations, the changas in equity and the cash

fiows: in 2007,

All accounting poficias and measuremant bases with a material effect on tne financial statements ware appied in
thelr preparation.

1.3, Comparative information -

The informalion relating to 2006 contsined in these notes 10 the financial stalements iz prosented with tha
information refafing to 2007 for comparison purposes only, and, accordingly, it does not consfitule the
Company's statubory financial staternants for 2006.

1.4. Responsibility for the Information and use of estimates -

The information in thess financizl statements is the respansibility of the Company's directors. In the financal
smmhmemmmﬂmmmwmcmﬂmrhm:art-:qumti‘fmmdﬁm
asssts, Rabilities, income, expenses and commitments reported herein. These estimaies relale basically o tha

fllowing:

= The impairment lxsses on certain assats (Nole 8).

« The assumpbons used in tha actuaral calculation of the post-employment benefit liabilities and
commigments (Mote 2-d y 14).

s The usaful iife of the tangible assets (Note 10).

= The fair value of certasin ungquoted assets (Note T y 9).

These estimates were made on the basls of the best information available at 31 Decembsr 2007 on the cvents
analysed, Howovar, fulure events might make it necessary to change thess estimates (upwards or dowrwards)

In coming years,

1.5. Environmental impact -

At 31 Dacamber 2007, the Company's finandial ststements did not disclose any ilom that should ba insluged in
the emvironmentsl information document envisaged in the related Ministry of Economy Order dated 8 Cotobar

2001
1.6. Report on the activity of the Customer Care Departrment and the Customer Ombudsman -

In canformity with Miniséry of Economy Crder ECOT34/2004, of 11 March, on Cuslomer Care Departrants and
Services and Customer Cmbudsman of Financial Institutions, and because the Company belongs to the Bants
ailbac Vizcaya Argentaria Group, the Bank adhered 1o the Reguiations cn the Cuslomer Ombudsman and the
Customes Care Depardment of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. ("BBVA™) and designaies as cusbomar

pmiudsman the ombudsman appointed by BEVA &t any tame.



1.7. Minlmum capital requiremenis -

Law 131952, of 1 Jupe, and Bank of Spain Clreular 511863 and subsequent amendments tharadn, regulate the
minimuen capital requirements for Spanish credit institulions -beth at entity level and al consolidated group

lgnvel— and the mannar in which these capital raquirsmeats are 1o be calculated.

As of Decomber 31, 2007 and 2006 the Group's qualifying capital excesdad the minimum required under the
aforamantioned |eglalaton.

The Basal Commitioe published a new Basel capal accord (also known as Basel If) which has replaced he
Basel Accord, A new regulatony framework (Directives 2006/M48/EC and 2008/M3/EC] was adopled in June 20086,

Royal Decres 216/2008, of 15 February, on capital of financial insiitutions was published on 16 Febnuary 2008,
Also, a series of amendments ware Inroduced fo Law 131985, of 25 May, on investment ratics, capitsl and
raporting requirements af financial Infermediaries. The main purposs of these new regulations is o fransposoe
into Spanish taw Directive 2006/4B/EC and Directive 2O0EMHES which, in tum, franspose inksy Community law

e New Basel Capltal Accord (Basel IT).

Accordingly, in 2008 the BEVA Group, in which the Company tekes part, must calculats its capital requirements
in accordance with the aforemantioned reguiations, which change the way enfities must calculale their minkmum
capital, include new risks that require the use of capital, such as operational sk, and Introduce new calculation
methodologies and models 1o be sppliad by the enfities, 2nd new requirements in the form of walidation
machanisms and public information to be disclosed to the markst. The BEVA Group is parforming the nesessary
aclaptations to its policias and processes in order fo comply with the aforementioned regulations. In this respect,
within the framework of the adaptation to Basel |l carried out in recent years, advanced management togis are

being imolemented for risk measurement (scoring systems, tansaction monioring, Vakse at Risk (VaR),
operational risk measurement, inter afia) which inchede, a3 a fundamental variabla of the modals, the anakysis of

capital requirements and the impacts of the decisions taken by the Group. In any case, the Campany's directors
consider that tha impact of the entry into forca of the aforementioned legistation will not be material.

1.8. Bubsequent events -

In the period from 1 January 2008 to the date when these financial stalemenis were suthorised for issue no
avents ok place having @ material effect on the financial statements.

2. Accountin ici urement

The accounting policies and measurement bases applied in prepanng e Company's financial stalements for
FHOOT wame 2 follows:

a) Financial instruments

initial recognition of financial instruments

Financial instruments are initially. recognised in the balance sheet when the Comparny becomss a party io the
contract, in accordance wilh the contractual conditions, and, in the case of the Company and in siew of s
company objact, the confract is based on the assighment of trade receivablas under facloring arrangements and
compiementary activities. Specifically, debt instruments, such as loans, are recognised from the tima that a legal

right to recehe cash arses,



Derecogrition of francial instrumenis
A financial assel is derecognised whan any of the following conditions are met:

1, The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expira; o

3. The financial assst is ransterred and substantally all its risks and rewarts are transferrad ar, although hess
arg nol suhstantislly transferred or retained, control over (he financial asssat = ransfarred.

Financial liakilities are only derscognised when the obligafions they gansrate have bigen exinguished or when
thay are acquired, with the intention either to resell them or 10 gancal them.

Enir value ang amortized cosf of inancial nsiruments

The falr value of a financial instrurment on a given date |s taken 0 be tha amount for which # could be bowght or
gold on [hat date by two knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's langth transaction. The most objective and
comman referance for the fair value of a financial instrement is the price that would ba paid for it on an
organised, fransparant and deep market {"quoted price” or “market price”).

If there is no market price for & given financial instrument., its fair value is estimated on the basis of tha price
astoblished in recent transactions involving similar instruments and, in the absence thereof, of vakeation
tachniques sutficianfly used by the inlemational financial community, laking iro account the specific features of
the instrument to be measured and, parliculardy, the various fypes of rsk associated with it

Amoriised cost is undersiood to ba the acquisiion cost of a financial asset or liability plus or minus, as
appropriate, the principsl repayments and interast payments and the cumulative amortisation charged o tha
income stalement by the effective interast method of the difference betwaen the initial cost and the maturty
amaurit of the financial instrumeants. In the case of financial assats, amotised cost also incledes any redoclions

for impakment.

Eor fixed rate financial instrumants, the effective interest rate coifcides with the contractusl inberest rata
pstablizhed on the acquisition date. kn the case of fioating rate financial instrements, the effeciive intarest rate is
astimated as for fixed rate ransactions and |s re-calculated on each repricing date on the bagls of the changeas

In future cash fows arising tharafrom,
Clzssification and measurement of financial assels and abififies
Financial instruments are classified in the Company’s balance sheet into the following calegoses:

1. Available for sake financial assets: This caption in the accompanying balance sheels includes the equity on
Talefdnica Factoring Do Brasil, Lida. That the Company hold on (zee Nota 7).

This equity is measured &t acquisition cost adjusted, where appropriate, by any refated mpaiment loss.

According to Circular 4/2004 of Bank of Spain, when there is an impairment @vidence, the impaiment losses are
pqual to the difflerence between fheir recoverable amount (Recoverable amount is the higher of an assat’s Tair
value less costs to sell and its value in use: the present value of expacied futire cash flows discounted at the
rruarket rate of retum for similar securities) and their carrying amount. Thess impairment losses ane determined
taking into account the agquity of the investee {except for valuation adjustments due to cash fliow hedoes) for the
iast approved balance sheet, adjusted for the unrealised gains at the measurement date, Impairment losses are
recognized in fhe Income staiement for the period In which they anse =5 a dirsct reduction of the cost of the

instrument. These losses may only be reversed subsequently in the event af the sala of tha assats,

The impaiment losses on equity instruments measured at acquisifion cost are equal to the difference botween
their camying amount and the present value of expacted future cash flows discountad al the market rate of retem
for similar securdies. Thess impairment losses are determined taking into account the equity of the invesies
{excent for valuatlion adjustments dus to cash flow hedgas) for the last approved balance sheel, adjustad for the

unrealised gains at the measuremant date.



Impalrment losses are recognized in the income stalerrent for the period in which thay arse as s direct
raduction of the cosi of the instrument. These iosses may only ba reversed subsequantly in the evant of the sale

of the a=zsals.

fcorued Dividends from these equities are recognized as Income in lhe heading “tncome from the eguity
insirumsnts” in the accompanying Income statements.

2 Loans and receivables: this category includes financing granted to third parties In conneclion with ordinary
lending rcfivities carmied oul by the Company and the "unfinanced, non-recourss” cradit sk,

The finandal assets inciuded in this category are initially recognised at fair vatue, adjusted by the amount of thi
fass and commissions and transaciion costs directly attributable fo the acquisition of the financisl asset, which
are chargad to the income statement on a straight-line basis until maturity. These azeets are Subsoguenlly

mezsured at amorised cost,

Azsets acquired at 3 dizcounl are maeasused at the cash amount paid and the differance betwosn [heir
repayment value and the cash amount paid Is recognised as finance Income on 3 straighl-line basis over the
remaining term o maturity.

The ‘recourse”™ Wransactions relate to debis for which the Company goes not bear the risk of nonpaymend,
Comversaly, In the "non-recourse” transactions, the Company bears any bad debt risk thal may ariso (3 default
by a debter arising from trade disputes between the debior and the assignor or from bressch of the contractsal
tarms soreed upon by them is not deemed o be 8 bad debt risk).

The *non-recourse” accounts recedvabla, which are retarded at the full amount of the unmatured remitiances
deliverad by the assignors and approved by the Company, ane induded under “Loans and Receivables - Loans
and Advances lo Customers - Factoring Transactions™ {Note £.3). The undrawn portion of the amount payabilo o
the assigrors 18 recognised under “Financial Liabilites at Amartised Cost - Other Financial Liabilities® (Mote 12)
in the accompanying halance sheats. in condrasi, in "racourse” tensaclions, “Loans and Recahvables - Loans
and Advances to Cusiomers - Factoring Transaclions® reflecis the portion of the unmabured delivered
remittances that has bean paid to the assignor, Also, pursusnt 1 Bank of Spain regulalions, the unmatured
remittances deliverad by the assignors relating to unfinanced recowrse faclorng ransactions, which amounted
3 EUR 184,751 thousand at 31 Decamber 2007 (31 December 2006: EUR 126,807 thousand), are included as
an aff-halance-sheet item under “Drawable by Third Parbes” (Nole 22},

In addition, the Company perarmed reverse (supplier} {actoring (“confirming”) ransactons in which the debt, on
which the Company bears the bad debt risk, takas the form of involces approved by the debler and advanced in
full to ihe assignor. The alorementicned transaclions are recorded under “Loans and Receivabies - Loans and
Advances to Customers - Reverse Factoring Transactions® (Mate 8.3), Raverse factoring remittances which are
not advanced are recognised as off-balance-sheet items and amounted to EUR 2,450,572 thousand at 31
December 2007 (31 Decembar 2006: EUR 2,266,500 thousand) {Mote 20). Certaln reverse facioring confracts
give the deblor the opfion of repurchasing his own factored receivables and of sharing through allowances the
ravanues from the faclored remittances. These allowances wWers recognised under “Interest Expanse and Similar
Chargas® in the accompanying income statemenis (Note 24).

Additionally, the Company parforms factoring {ransactions known as “overall factoring”, which is charactensesd
madniy by the establishmant of an overall limit per assignor, taking an board the recsivables on which the
Company bears the bad debt risk or makes advances on accourt and the establishment of a threshold balow

which this risk will not be covered. These iransaciions are recognised under *Loans and Racoivatles - Loans
and Advanoes to Cusiomers - Factoring Transackons® (Mole 8.3}

Since the Comparny ganerally has the inténtion to hold these transactions to final maturity, thay are recognised
at amorfised cost in the balance sheal

Inlarest aamed on these assets, which is calcuiated using the effective intarest method as defined abovea, is
recognised under “Interest and Similar income” In the accompamying income sistements. The exchange
differences on secunlies incuded in this categary denominated i curmancies other than the ewro are recognised

as sat farth in Mote 2-2.



cost: this categary inclugdes the financial liabiliies not Included uder

3. Financial liabilities at amortised
lities at Falr Valua through Profit or Loss or

Financial Lishilitias Hald for Trading or undar Other Financial Liabi
thmough Equity.

Whan funds are advanced, the advance amount is paid directly 1o the customer and the applicable intarest and
factoring ies, if any, can be deducted. Howsver, if the Company does not advance any funds, the fransaction
amaunt is recognised under “Financial Liabilities at Amardised Cosf in the accompanying bakance sheats until it
&5 paid to the customer when collected (Note 12).

Addilionally, “Financial Liabllittes at Amortised Cost in the accompanying balance sheets indudes the amount
payable to assignors in respect of the stipulated contraciual deposit or of the unused portion.

Inberest accruad on these Babiliies, which |s calculated using the effective inlerest method a5 defined abowe, s
recognisad imder “interest Expense and Similar Charges® in the accompanying income statarmants, Tha
axchange differences on securities included In this calegony denominated in currencies ofher than the euro are
recognisad as sol forth In Mole 2-2.

impairment financial assels

Dusfinithon

A financial assel & considered o be impaired - and thareiore its camying amount is adjusiad fo refliect the effect
of #s impairment — when there is objective evidence that events have occumed which:

In the case of debt instrumants (loans and debt securities), give rise 1o a negative impact on the future
cash RBows that were estimated at the time the transaclion was arranged.

« In the case of equity instruments, mean that the camying amount of thesa instruments cannot b
recovered,

As a general rule, the camying amount of impalred financial instruments is adjusted with a charge to the
consobdated Income statement for the yvear in which the Impaimment becomes knmen, end the recoveries of
previously recognized Impairmant losses are recognized in the income statement for the yesr in which the
impaimment is reversed or reduced, with the excaplion that any recovery of praviously recognized mmpairment
Insses for an investment in an equity instrument classified as avaiable for sale which are nol recognized through
profil or ioss but recognized under the heading =yakuation Adjustments — Avallable for sale Financial Assals” in

the balanca sheal,

Balances are considered to be impaired, and accrual of the interest thereon i% suspended, when themn ara
masonahle doubts that the balances will be recovered In full andior the relaled interest will bo collachad for the
amounts and on the dates initially agreed upon, taking inlo account the guarantess received by the entity 1o
assure fin part ar in full) the performance of transachions. Amounts collected in relation 1o impaired loans and
raceivables are used o recognize the related accrued intarest and any excess amount is used to redece the

principal not yat paid
When the recovery of any recognized amount is considerad fo be remote, this amount is removed from ihe

eoneolidated balance shest, without prejudice to any actions taken by the entity in onder (o collect the amount
unifil thesr rights extinguish in full through expiry, forgiveness o for olher reSE0NS.



Calculation of impairment financial assets

The impairment on fnancal assets is determined by type of insirument and the calegory whare & recognized, as
folicows:

Impairment of debt instruments carried at amartired cost

Impairment losses determined Individually

airmenl losses of the asseis dassified s impaired is done on an individual basls in

The quaniifecation of mp
nt of thair operations is equal 1o or exceeds €1 million.

which customers i the amou
The amaunt of the impaimment losses incurred on thase instrumeants relates io the posilive difference betwesn
their respective camying amounts and the present values of their wpecied futura cash flows.

The following is o be taken into consideration when estimaling the future cash flowa of debt instruments:

« Al the amounts that are expected to be obtained ovar the residual life of e instrument; including,
the guarantees provided for the instrument {afiar

where approgriale, those which may result from
daduciing the costs raquired for foreclosure and subsoquent sale}.

e The various types of risk to which each instrement is subject.

«  The clrcumstances in which collections will foreseeable ba made.

rata, If a financial instrument has a varabla

Thesa cash fiows are discounted using the original effective inlerest
tha cument affective rate detarmined under

interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the contrack.

As an exception to the rule described above, the markel value of quoted debt instruments is deamed to be a far
astimate of the prasent value of their future cash flows.

Iimpairment losses determined collectively
The quantification of Impaimant losses is determined on a cofiective basis in the feliowing two Gases:

Assats classified as impaired of customers in which the amount of helr operations is fess than €1 milfian,

Asget porfolio not impaired but which presents an inherant lnss.

loss of credit risk correaponding to oparations with resident in Spain, the BEVA uses
472004 from Bank of Spain on the base of its exparience and the
tification of impainmant losses and provisions for Inschvencies for
a% the Bank of Spain validates intermal models based on

To estimate the collective
the parameliers set by Annex X of the Circular
Spanish banking sector information in the quan
credit dsk. These parameters will be used as far
historssl experiance of the Bank,



Fokowing ls a description of the methodology to estimate the coflactive loss of credit sk

1. Specilic allowance or provision fior ingalven i the lin dou

Tha daht instrumants, whoever the obligor and whatever the guarantae or callatersl, that have past-due amounts
with more than three months, shall be anelyzed individually, taking nto account the age of the pas-dus
amounts, the guarantees or collateral provided and the sconomic stuation of the customer and the guaraniors.

In tha case of unsecurad transactions and taking into account the age of the pasi-due amounts, the allowance

percentages are as follow:

B 1 L

Up to & manths betwnrn 4.5% and 5.3%
Creid & months and op to 12 months hetwoan 27.4% and 27.68%
Creer 12 months snd up 1o 18 months betwean B0.5% and B5.1%
Oregr 18 months and up o 24 monins batwean 33.3% and 95.8%
Creer 24 praonths 100

2. Genersl allowanse or provision of the portiolio into fores

The debf nstruments, whoever the obligor and whatevar the guarankeg of
objective of impaiment are collectively assesses, including the assets
characteristics, sector of activity of the debtor or the type of guarantes.

eollataral, that do not have indhadually
in a group with similar credi sk

The allowance perceniagss of hedge are as follows:

Nagiigibile risk: 0%
Lowe rlgke: 0.20% - 0.75%
Madium-low riskc: 0.50% - 1.88%
Madium risk: 0.59% - 2.25%
Madium-high risk: 0.66% - 2.50%
High risk: 0.83% -3.13%

b) Investments

This item in the accompanying balance sheets includas the Company's ownership intarest in the share c:apital of
Telefinica Facioring Mexico, S.A. de C.V. (Note 9).

This investmeant is measured at acquisition cost, ned of impairment losses, if applicable.

Pursuant to Bank of Spain Clrcular 402004, of 22 December, when thers ts evidence of impairment of
investments, the impairment amount is esiimaled as the negative difference between the recoverable amount
{calcutated as the higher of fair value of the invesimant jess costs to sed or value in use; valus in use |s defined
as the present value of the cash flows expecied to be received from the investmant in the form of dividends and
those resuiting from is sale or other disposal) and the camrying amount. Impairment losses on thess investments
and reversals of impairment losses ara charged and credited, respectively, to “impairment Losses (Met) in tha

incomé statement.



c) Recognition of income and expanses

Thee most significant criteria used by the Company o recognise s income and expensas are summarised as
followes:

Interest ncome, inferes! sxpenses and sirmdlar Bems!

As a general rule, interest income, interest expenses and similar items are racognized on the basis of heir
pariod of accrual Spedifically, dividends recsived from other companies are recognised 88 income when the

Company's right to recelve them arises.

Howevar, when a debt Instrument is deemed to be impaired individually or is Included in a group of instruments
that are impaired because they have paymenls more than three months past due, the recognition of accried
interest in the income stalement is suspended. This interest is recognised as Income, when coliectad, 25 a

revarsal of the related impalmant lossas.

Commisslans, fees and similar fems:

Fes and commission income and Expenses are recognised in the income statoment using criteria that vary
according o thair natura. The most significant fee and commission items are as follows:

. ‘Those arsing from transacfions of senaces that are provided over a perod of tme, wiich e
recognised over the life of these transachons or sevices.

Thoss relaking o a service provided in a singie act, which are recognised when the single acl is camed
ot

Mon-finance ineome and axpreses.
Thesa are recognised for accounting purposas on an acerual basiz,
d} Post-employment benefits and other commitments to employees

Faollowing ks a description of the mosl significant accounting criteria relafing to the commilments o amployess,
related o posl-employment benefits and other commitments, of the Bank and branch ghroad (Mote 14).

Commilments valuation: assumptions and gainsloasos pecognitlon

The presant vatues of the commitments are quantified on a case-by-case basis. The valuaton method used for
currenl employees is the proj unit credit method, which views each ysar of service as giving rsa o an
addifional unit of benefit entitement and mMEasures gach wnil saparabely.

In adopting the actuarial assumptions, it is takan into account that:
They are unbéizsed, in that they are naher imprudent nor excessively ponsarvative.

s  They aré mutually eompatible, refiecting the peonomic relationships batween factors such as infiation,

rates of salary increase and discount rates.

s The future [eveis of salaries and wenefits are based on market expectations at the balance sheet date
for the period over which the obkgations are 1o ba settled.

» The discount rate usad is determined by reference to market yialds al the baiance shasl date on high
guality corporate bonds.

Actuarial galns or losses arising from differences betwsen the actuarial assumptions and what had actually
accutrid, were recognizad in the Income statemants. The bank did not use the “corrdor approach”.



Post-employment banefits

= Pensions
Post-employment benofits indude defined contribution and defined obligation commitmeants.

Drefined contrbotion commitments

the amounis of these commitments am determined, on a case-by-case bazls, sz a percentage of cedain
remunarabion items andios as a pre-sstablished annual amount. The current contributions made by the Company
for dafined contribution refirement commiments, which are recognized with a chargs to the heading “Personnal
Expenses - Contributions to external pension funds® in the actompanying income statements (Motes 14 and

27,
Defined benefit commiments

The Gomgany has defined benefit commitments for permanant disability and death of current employees and
narly refireas; for dealh of cerain rstired employees; and defined-benafit refirsment commitnents applicable

anly 1o certain groups of serving employess (unvested benefits), or early retired employees (vested banefits) and
of refired employees {angoing benefits). Defined benefit commitments are funded by insurance contracts and

infemal provisions.

Enfities that have covered thelr pension commitments with insurance policies writlen by entiies forming part of
the group shall recognise those cormmitments as follows:

{i) Pansion commilments to employees shall be recorded as pension provisions.
() The insurance policy shall be recorded en the assel side as an insasrance contract finked o

(iii} The expanss for the period shall be recorded in the lem “personnsl expenses” net of the amount
relating 1o the Insurance contracls.

= Post-employment welfare benefits

The Bank has walfare benefi! commitments the effects of which sdend beyond the refirerment of the empioyeas
enfitled to Fe benefits. These commitments reiste o certain curent employees and refirees, depending upon
the emploves group to which they belong.

The present values of the vested obiligafions for post-employment weltare benafits are guaniified on & case-by-
case basis. They are recognized in the heading "Provisions - Funds for Pensions and Similar Obfigations” in the

accompanying balance sheets (Nole 13) and they are charged 1o the heading "Personnal expenses — Other
pemsonnel expenses” in the accompanying income statements (Mot Tk

Dther commilments fo employees

The Bank is obiiged to deliver partially or fully subsidised goods and services. The maost significant amployes
walfare benefits granted, in terms of the type of compensation and the event giving rise to the commimenis ane:
loans to employeas, fifle insurance, study aid and long-sanvice bonusas.

The presant valuss of the vested obligations for commitments with personna| are quantified on a case-by-case
hagis, They are recognized in the heading *Frovisions - Funds for Pensions and Simiar Obligations” in the
accomparying balanca sheats (see Note 13). The post-employment welfare benefits doliversd by the Bank to
aofive amployess are recognized in the heading "Personnel expensss — Other personngl expansas” in the

Accompanying income statements (see Nota 27).
Cithar commitmants for current employess accrue and are setiled on a yearly basis, it is nol necessary to recard
a provision in this connection.
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e} Translation differences

Fumctional ctimency:

The Company's funcional currency Is the eurn. Therefore, af balances and transactions denominated in
currencies other than the euro are desmad to be denominated in Joreign curency”.

The detail at 31 December 2007 and 2006 of the equivalent suro value of the main assel and lability balances
denominated in foreign currency, by item, is as follows:

 Thousands of Euros

T

1k : 2006

T ", i ; L
Loans and receivables 1434
Pound staring 151
US dodlar A58
Yan 325
Available-for-sale financial assets 247
Bragilian real 247
Investmenis -
Mexican paso =
LIARILITIES
Financial liabilities at amorised cost 1,434
Pound siering 131
LIS dollar g58
Yen 325

Transiation of farsign cumancy balances:
Foreign cusrency iransactions performed by the Company are initially recognised in the financial statements at

the equivalent suro value, transtaled using the exchange rates prevailing at the transaction data. Subsaquartly,
the Company franslates the forsign cumency monetary balances to its functional cemancy using the closing

axchange rales,

Excharge rales

For the purpose af preparing the financial statemeants, foreign curmancy balances wers fransiated 1o eurns, taking
inle account the sforementioned critera, at the exchange rates published by the European Ceniral Bank.

fi Tangible assets
Proparty, plant and equipment for own use includes assets held by the Company for cument or fulure wse which

are expecied to be used over more than ona year, Property, plant and equipment for own use is presentad in the
hatance sheat at acquisition cost —the falr value of any consideration glven plus the aggregate cash paymeants

made or commitied-, less:
1. The rekated accumulated depreciation, and
2. Anry estimated impaimment losses (pet camying amount higher than recoverable amount).

Depreciation is calculaied, using the stralght-ine method, on the basis of the acquisiion cost of the asseis less
thedr residuai valus. The land on which the bulldings and other structures stand has an Indefinita life and,

thereiorm, s nol gepraciatao.

"



The tangibie asset deprecialion charge is recognised in the income statement and B calculated basically using
the following depraciation rates (based on the average years of eslimated uzafil [ifa of the various azsals):

Lt ol AL s 41
Bulldings and slruciures
Computer hardwane

The Campany asasgsos at the reporing dete whether there is any intemal or external indicafion at & tangibla
assel may be impaired (ie. B carrying amount exceeds s recoverable amaunt), If this is the case, the camying
amount of tha assat is reduced to its recoverable amount and future depreciation charges ars adjusied n
proportion o the new remaining uselul life andior to the revised camying armoLend.

Simikarly, i there is an indication of a recovery in the value of a tangible assst, the Company recognises lhe
revarsal of the impakment loss recognised in prior perods and adjusts the futre depreciation charges
accordingly, In no circumslances may the reversal of an impairment loss on an asset raiss its carrying amount
above that which it would have If no impairment kosses had been recognised in prior years.

Upkesp and maintenance expenses relating 1o property, plant and equipment for own usa are recognised as an
expansa in tho year in which thay are incumad.

gl Tax assais and liabikilies

tament, axcept when il results from fransactions the

The income tax expense s recognised in the income si8
i which case e income t2x s also recognised in

gains or knsses on which are recognised directly in equity,
equity.

The current income iax expense is calculated as the sum of the cument tax resulting from appication of the
appropriate tax rats to the laxable profit for the year {net of any deductions allowable for tax purposes), and ol
the changes in deferred tax assets and Eabilities recognised in the income statemant.

i 28 November 2008, Law 35/2006 on Personal Income Tax and Parilally Amending the Corporation Tax, M-
Resident Income Tax and Wealth Tax Laws was published. This Law, which will come into effect on 1 January
2007, establishes, inter alia, a reduction in the standard tao rate for corporation tax purposes o 32.5% for tax
pariods beginning on or after 1 January 2007 and to 30% for tax perieds beginning on or after. 1 January 20043,

“Income Tax® ncludes the amounts charged and credited to the Income statement (sea Motz 10)in ponnaction
with the Income taxes accrued in the current year and arsing from adjustments 1o the amounts recognised in
RO YEars.

Deductible temporary differences, arising from differences between the carrying amount and the tax base of an
asset or liahility item, and tax credit and fax loss camy forwards give rise to daferred tax assets or Eabilities.
Defarred tax asssts and lishiliies are calculated by applying fo the temporary diference or to the relaled tax
credit and tax loss camy forward the tax rates at which they are expected fo be repovered or setiled.

The deferred tax assets and labilities recognised are reassessed pericdicaly in order o ascertain whither they
silll exist and the aporopriale adjustments are made on the basis of the findings of the analyses performed.
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h) Provigions

Provisions are present obligations arising from a legal or conractual requirement, from vafid expectations
created by the Company in thind parties regarding the assumption of cantain types of respansibilities or from the
virtual cartainty 26 to the fulure course of regulation in particutar raspects. espacially proposed new lagisiation

that the Compary cannot avoid.
Provisions are recognised in the balance she#l when gach and evary ong of the foliowing requngments i5 ot
tha Comgany has a present chiigation resulting from a past event and, at the balance shast date, it is more Bely

than not that the obBgation will have o be sellled; it is probable that to settle the cbigation the Company will
have fo give up resources embodying economic banefits: and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt af

the obligation.

iy Termination benefits

the Comparty has undertaken o terminale the tabour

Termination benefits must be recognised when
Thers aré no redundancy plans

employment of employaes under a formal detailed employes terminabon plan.
making i necassary 1o recognise a provision in this connection.

[} Cash flow stalement
The fallowing tarms are used in the cash flow statements with the meanings specified:

1. Cash flows: inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents, which are short-lsm, highiy liqusd immestmants
that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2, Operaling activities: typlcal credil instiuiion activities and ather adtivilies that are not investing or financing
adlivities.

3. Investing activities: the acguisition and disposal of lang-term asseds and other irvestments not included in
cash and cash equivalents.

4. Financing activities: aclivities that result in changes in the size and compasition of the equity and bamowings
of the Company that are not operating activities.

Dis i rusk

The proposed distribution of net profit for 2007 thal will be submilled for approval by the sharehclders al the
Annual General Mesting is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

e R R e

g
1T

G
ST

Z007 nat profit
Distribution to:
Volundary resena
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4.  Remunersfion of directors and senior executives

Remunaration of directors -

I 2007 and 2008 the Company's Board mambers did not eam of recelve any salaries, attendance leds or other
remuneration and the Company did not grant any advances or loans or have any pension of life Insurance
commitments fo current or former Board members.

Remuneration of senior exgculives -
The satary received in 2007 by the Company’s senlor executive officer amounted to EUR 78 thousand.

Detail of the directors’ iInvestments in companies with similar business activities and performance by
directors, as independent professicnals or as employees, of similar activities.

Pursuant io Articks 127.3 of the Spanish Companies Law, introduced by Law 262003, of 17 July, which amands
Sacuriies Market Law 2410888, of 28 July, and the Spanish Consolidated Companies Law, in ordar to reinforoes
the transparency of Fsted companies, following s a detail of the companles engaging in an aclivity that js
idendical, similar or complementany 1o the activity that constitules the company object of the Company and of the
Banco Bilbao Vircaya Angeniara Group, in which the members of the Board of Direclors own, directly or
indirectly, eauity Interegts.

iy e Investas Activity 'f._'.l'-l'-l'lETE_hrFl Functions
C R Interest

Jeviar Wirgilio Estévez Zurita BEVA, 5.A Banking 14,168 Offices
Carog Diivares Sénchaz BEVA, 5.4, Banking 2,404 Cifficer
Jose lgnacio Lipaz-Parea Parama BEVA, 5.4 Banking 141 Cifficer
Joma Anuatin Antdn Burgos BEWVA, 5.8 Banking 13,769
Banco da Sabadell, 3.A.  Banking 2,000 CHfcar
Banco Populan, 5.4 Banking 2,000
Bannsta, SA. Banking o, 000
M® ded Mar Rodrigo Casanova BEVA, 5.4, Banking 3,105 Cifscar
Elias Sober Vives BEWVA, SA Banking 7,679 =
M gt Carmen Cuarel Basza BEVA, 5A Bankng 2,134 Cficer
Emikano Salcines Zugast BEVA, 5.A, Banking 1,200 Dfficar
Juan José Moreno Serrand BEVA, 5.A, Banking 5.539 Oificar
Fermandn Coloming Bamusco BEVA, 5.A, Banking 3,444 -

Also, pursuant to the aforementioned Law, set forth below ame the aclivillies camed on, as indegendent
professionals or as employees, by the varous members of the Board of Directors that are identical, simikar or
complementary to the activity that constifutes the company object of the Company:

by P e s ! Function or

: J 2 BEVA, 5.A, Chficear

Jeies Vingiia Eatives Zurit Telefénica Facloring, S.A Diracioe
Telefdnica Facloning. 5.4 Direcior

Carios Olivares Sinchez Taleldnica Faciorng do Brasi Lida, Direcior
Telefonica Factoring Meaxdoo, S_4. de SV, Direcior

Jose Ignacio Ldpaz-Parea Paramao BEVA, S.A. Difficer
Jose Agustin Anidn Burgos BEWVA, S.A. Oifficer
A del Mar Rodrigo Casanava BEVA, SA, Officer
&1 del Carmeen Cuerel Saeza BBEWVA, B.A. Oificar
Emiliana Salcines Jugast BBVA, S.A Officar
Juan José Moranc Seman BBYA, S.A, Officer
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5.1, Interest rate risk management -

The Company aclively manages its interest raie risk in order to minimisa, and in cenain cases efimnate, the
possible impact of changes in markel Interost rates on is investment and, theraions, on Ihe net interest income

reportad in the income statament.
For this prepose saveral dearty differentiated measuras are takeen, namely:

1. For certain transactions, the funds required for payments 0 customers are raised through the BEVA
Treasury Department rather than using the central account {average of 30-day Euribar).

The Company requests the funds required from the Treasury Daepariment for the time required for the
transaction concemad, thersby closing the transacbon price and, therefore, fully efiminating any possible
interast rale dsk which might arise.

The paramelars giving rise to this measure are as foliows: a) very tight spreads, b) very long financing
penods for carain transactions, and ¢) very large amount fveatmants, Obviously, those parameters are
considerad provided that the fimancing method |s not payment in armears and that their referance rate s the
central account, since in this case there would ba no risk in this connection.

2 Dally assessment of the Interest rate parformance. Foliow-up of the European Central Bank's expectations
in raspest of the foresesable short- and medism-lerm imeres! rate policy. Monthly analysis of the
Company's average spread on its contracts.

3. On the basls of the foregoing, the Company considers the possibility of boowing funds from BEVA's
Treasury Department in order to eliminate the possible interest rate risk on cerain of the Compamy's
Investment aggregates, divided into 15-day tranches once the weighled average inferest rate applied io

cusiomears has been cabculated for these figuras.

The Company has an outstanding credi facility through BEVA with a limit of EUR 2,500,000 thousand for Bese
transaciions. The balance drawn down at 31 December 2007 amounted o ELR 1,288,967 thousand.

5.2, Credit risk expostre -

The Company's maxmum credit risk esposure amountad to ELIR 6,806,074 thousand at 31 Decembes 2007, up
25.8% on 2005 year-end. The breakdown of these figures betwsan the two products managed for the BEVA
Group shows that the decrease in reverse facioring with respact io 2006 was 23.65% —thiz product concenltrales
41.7% of the iodal risk-, whereas facioring —which aceounts for £5 3%, of the total= Increased by 27.4%.

Tha cistomer credit risk is beoken down as follows:

ands of Euras

S50 00 [ Factorii Rigk T
2007 M ONRET
3115672
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At 31 Decamber 2007, the lotal past-due balance amounied to EUR 53,479 thousand as a resull of Ihe special
foatures of the products managed by the Company and of the Bank of Spain regulations i this connecion,
which alfect the recording of provisions. A distinction must be drawn between past-due balances recersable from
the private secior and thoss receivable from the public sector. The fosmer must be provisioned on the basia of
tha age of the past-due balances (based on the schedule sot by the regulator), whareas those relating o the
pubiic sector are not provisioned. Theredore, the detail of the aforementioned past-due balance is s follows:

TR of Bores
o npagholies o Ffevisien

ba L T

Private Sector

Pubilic Sector

Central govermanant ;
Auonomous community govamments
Local governments

Social security

Total

However, thess past-duss can be desmad fo be techalcal non-perfommance sinca they arise mainly from the
Inng payment pesiods of the public secior rather than from an achsal non-parformance which may entail a loss

for the Company,
Mobewarthy is the large amount of the past-dues from autonomoes cOmmAnEy governments which anses from
e factoring ransactions performed on varous SDNOMOUS comMmunity agencies mianaging the public haalth

care system. The past-dues relate mainly fo the long payment pedods of some of these agancies. The reasons
am mullipls depending on the autonomaous community concomed, but they ere summarnsed a3 folows:

« Long inlernal administrative processes &t each health agercy, which means thal the invoice accounting
period s hatwaen 90 and 180 days,

= Once the invoice has been accounted for it must be approved and the apperoval period is quite long
(batween 90 and 360 days). : ;

«  Finally, @ budget item mus? be assigned to the expenditure, and furds must be available o make the
refated paymants.

Cansequandly, the total past-due ratio was 0.77% at 31 December 2007, whereas that relating only to the privats
secior was 0.11%. This gave rise to an increase with respect o 2006, when the past-due ratio was 1.12% and

that of the private sector was 0,13 Sa.

The total specific provisions for credi risk recognised by the Company amounted o EUR 7,318 thaugsand, TT%
of which relate o past-dues from the private sector and 8.2% relale o past-duas from the public sectar.
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6. Cash and balances with central banks

The breakdown of the balanee of “Cash and Balances with Central Banks™ in the batance sheetz al 31

Decamber 2000 and 2008 is as ollows:

Thousands DfEums

B, 7 { 2__:!]]_.5; e
Cash 2
Balances with the Bank of Spein 30
Tatal 32
7. Available-for-sale finencial assats
The breakdown of this heading in the accompanying balance sheets by Esting is as follows:
e L e Thnmandﬁngu_ﬂE !
By lisling status .
Linlistad 247
Less- Impaimmant loss {48)
203

The balance of "Avallable-for-Sale Financial Assets - Olbwer Equity Instrumanis” In the accompanying Balancs
sheets at 31 December 2007 and 2006 related 1o & $0.25% interest in the share capital of Telefdnica Factoring

dio Birasi, Lida. These securities are nof listed.

The dividend accrued dusing 2007 is recorded under the heading “Income from equity instruments” in the

ineoms statement and amounted o 240 thowsand suros.
8, Loans and receivablas

8.1. Breakdown

The breakdown, by type of financial nstrument, of the balance of "Loans and Recaivablas™ in the alance sheels

et 31 December 2007 and 2008 is as follows:

Thousands of _Eum

1 P e A

Loans gnd advancas to credt instibutions
Loans and advances to cestomers

Other financial assets

5,508,867
Lass- impaimeant osses (101,306}
Total 5,408,561

17



&.2. Loans and advances to credit institulions

The breakdown, by type of financial instrument, of the balance of "Loans and Advances lo Cradil Instiutions” in
e balance sheels at 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Time deposits
Dermand

Leas- Impairminl l0sses
Total

§.3. Loans and advances o cusiomars

The breakdawn, by loan type and status, of the balance of "Loans and Advances o Cusfomers” in the balancea
sheals 2 31 December 2007 and 2006, disregarding the batance of impairment kasses, is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

L o
s 1 g Lt o -

By loan type and status
Factonng and reserve factonng transaciions
Oiher term loans

Recaivabla an demand and other

impaired assets

Less- Valuafion adjustrments- Accrued interest
Todal

The breakdown, by type of sk and transaction type, of the *Factoring and Reverse Facloring Transactions®
aceount in the foregoing defall st 31 Decamber 2007 is as follows:

Thousands of Eures
Typa of risk-
Recourse ransactions
Non-recourse transachions-
In euros 5,104, 884
in foralgn cumency 1,434
5410203
Transaction type-
Factoring 2870 524
Raszarye facioring 2,294 531
Crverall factaring 435,148
5410.203




The breakdown, by activity sector of the borrower, of “Loans and Advances lo Customers™ at 31 December 2007

disregarding valuation adjustments, iz as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Resident Mon-Resident Total

Borrowers Bomowars
Public sector 1,771,854 - 1,077,854
Manifacturing 1,350,511 277 B0 1,837,315
Raal asiate and construction 1,688,333 - 1,688,333
Retalling and financial services B0, 203 BOO, 203
Cihar 1,007 562 1,007,562
Total E,627,563 - 6,905,367

The breakdown, by ackvily seclor of the boarmower, of “Loans and Advances to Customers” at 31 December

2008, disregarding vablsation adjustments, is as follows:

Resident

Thousands of Euros

......

Non-Residant

Puhifie sactor Ofe, 852 - G668 52
Manufaciuring 1221, 226 151,780 1,373,006
Real estate and construction 1,596,692 - 1,596,692
Retalllng and financlal services T35,073 = 735,043
Other 875,76 BTS,TES
Tolal 5,395,548 151,780 5,547,328

The broakdown, by geographical area, of “Loans and Advances to Customers™ ai 31 Dacember 2007 and 2006,

digreganding valuation adjustments, is a3 follows:

Thousands of Euros

L2006
Eurmpa 5,915,525
United States 28,645
Latin Amearica 1,634
Rest of the world " 34 1,524
Taotal EE= 6,905,367 5 547,328

Mote 20 o the financial statements contsins & detgil of he schaeduled maturties of these assels at 2007 and

2008 yaar-and.

18



E. 4. Impaired assets and impairment losses
The changes in 2007 and 2006 in "Loans and Advances lo Customers - impairad Assels™ wene a5 follows:

Thousands of Euros

- VR

Bal;anne al beginning of year
Additions
Reversals

Wrilten-off assets

Balance at beginning of year
Additional impalrment charged Lo incorme statement
Reversal of impairment chargad fo intome stalement
Writs—ofi- Use of provision
Other changes
Balance at end of year
OF which:
Individually assessed
Collectivily assessad
Of wihich:
By assat covared
Loans and advances to cusiomers
Gfwhichs
By geographical area
Europa
Orihers

101,306

101,306

The recoveries of balances previously writien off amounted to EUR 8 thausand in 2007 and EUR 1 thousand in
2006 and are prasentad as a deduction of the balance of “Impaiment Losses (Net) - Loansand Receivables® in

the accompanying income siatamants.

Financial assets weitten off In 2008 because their recovery was deemed o be remote amounted to EUR 581
thousand in 2007 {3,127 thousand euros in 2006),

As of Dacamber 31, 2007 financial income amounting 1o €1 thousand had accruad, but was not recorded in tha
income statement because thaere were doubls reganding its collestability (nome inderast was not accrued As of

December 31, 2008).



9. Investments

Thiz heading in the accompamyng balance shzels amounding to 547 thousand euros relatas o an 24.32%
interast in tha share capital of Telefinlea Faciorning Mexico, 5.4 da GV, acquired on Januany 10, 2008, Thaso

seourities are not listsd,

There 5 no impatrment kosses durlng 2007,

10. Tanglble suseis

The changes in 2007 and 2006 in Tangible Assels” i the accompanying balance sheets, itamisaed by type of
assat, Wware as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Furniturs

Cosat, net of allowance-

Balance at 1 January 2006 501 | 8o2
Additons 15 - 15
Refirements = = -
Balance at 31 Decomber 2006 518 am 81T
Addilians LS 47 BRE
Retiramanis = - -
Bsalance at 31 Decamber 2007 557 348 S05
Accumulated deprecistion-

Balance at 1 January 2006 {3} {253) {rod)
Additions {35 () (38)
Retirments . -

Balance at 31 December 2006 1478) (262) {40}
Additlons (31) (12} {43}
Rstiramanis a . .
Balance at 31 December 2007 {50 {274} {TH3)
Balanca at 31 Decembar 2006 i b it 7
Balance at 31 December 2007 48 T 122

Fully depreciated azsels amounled o ELIR 550 thousand at 31 Decamber 2007 (530 thowsand eums as of 31
December, 2008). The Company cames on its business actvities basically in properBies owned by Banco Ellbao
vizcaya Amgentara, 54, and a rental expense of EUR 120 thowsand was recopnisad i this respect in 2007

(€129 thowsand as of 31 December, 2006).
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8 e anis and accrued Income and Accruaed & a5 and deferred incomea

The breskdown of the balances of "Prepayments and Accrued Income”™ and “Accrued Expenses and Deferred
income” in the acoompanying balance shoels was as follows:

Thousands of Euros
Assets -
Prepald cxpennes 44
Ofher prepayments and accrued income 280
Todal 2,865
Liabilities -
Uinmatured acoreed sxpenses 1,050
Dther accrued expenses and deferrad noome 6,370
Tokal 7,429
12. Financia itigs at amortis

Tha breakdown of the balances of “Financlal Liahikties at Amornisad Cost” in the eccompanying balance sheats
5 as follows:

Thousands of Euros
o BE B

A= T

Deposits from credd inslibudions
Hher financial abilifies
Facloring payables
Reverse factoring payables
Crtar {bams

Total

12.1. Deposits from credit insttutions -

The breskdown, by bpe of tFansaction, of tho bafances of “Deposits om Credit insGiutions® in e
accompanying balance shests 15 as folows;

s il R 25 S A
I e

oY e T e L AL
‘Deposits with agreed maturity

Other accounts
Waluation adjustments
Total FEIEEAUS 165 5,045,737
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Tha datail of the balance of "Time Deposits” in the foregoing table is as follows:

Thousands of Evres (Balance Drawn Down)

3208 Undefined Urnchafirsd

Eni;.:u:irg Acsalint wmmlcﬂ EE'_'IEI.I:I Vizcaya
fmeniana, SLA

Coredit faciity with separmate dvadosns frodm
Banco Bilbao Vizzaya -'-rgxtana sS4,

Tobal

1,308 330 2500000  June A1

The financing sccount and the credi faciliies shown In the foregoing table baar interest at fioating rates tied to
Euribor, ranging from 4.19% o £.74% ai 31 Docamber 2007 (from 2.4% 10 3.6% during 2005).

The balance of "Other Deposits™ relates in full 1o d2poshs placed by customars ressdent in Spaan.
i3. Provisions

The breakdown of the balance of "Provisions” i the balanee sheets at 31 December 2007 and 2006 is as
Todlows:

Thousands of Euros
: 12006
“Provisions for penaicns and smilar obigations
oz 14) 356
Cfhar provisions 4,075
Total 4,431

The changes in 2007 and 2006 in the balances of "Provisions for Pensions and Similar Obligations™ and of

*Other Provisions” in the accompanying balance sheel were as follows:
Thousands of Eures

Provisions for
Penslons and | Odher provisions

sbmilar

Badance ot 1 Jamzary 2006 328 4,075 4,403
‘ear provision with a charge o Incoma for the year .
Acdciionsl provisions 25 25
Intsrast sxpenses and simiar charges [Nole 14 ¥ 24) 4 2 o
Farsonnel expanses # #
Transfar o bad debts i
Oiher Changes {1} . [
Balance al 31 Decamber 200E s 4,075 4431
Yequr provision with a chamge o incame for the year
Addiona provisions (48} 1,213 1,166
Interest axpense and swmiiar chargas (Mole 18 y 24) B - g
Farsannal expanses G G
Transfor o bad debis -
D Changes (15} - (18]
Balance at 31 Decembar 2007 305 5288 §,Ba3
O wihiich
Prowzions v ail-balaics-shasd ks v = =
Cihar orowigiona 35 5,288 ER2
Balance at 31 December 2047 35 5,280 5.583
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The charpes to the income statement relating to "Provisions for Pensions and Similar Ohligatons™ are
rocognised under "Interest Expense and Similar Charges®. "Personnel Expenses” and “Provisions (Net]® in the
income statement for 2007 and amounted to EUR & thousand, EUR & thouseands and EUR (48} thousand,
respectively (2006: EUR 4 thousand, zem and EUR 25 thousand, respectively).

The year provisions lof “Other provisions™ charged 10 income in 2007 under the heading “Allowance Provison
{net)” in the income stalement smounted o €1,123 thousand.

The Company's direclors congider that there were no material conlingencies at 31 Dacember 2007 that might
affedt the Company™s equely of net profil ;

1d. Commitmanis to 5

Under the collective kabour agreemant, Spanish banks are required o supplament the social security benefits
received by employess or thair beneficiary righthalders in the event of refirerment (except for those hired after 8

March 1880), permanant disability, death of spouse or death of parent.
The employes weHare system in place at the Bank supsrsede and improve the lorms and conditions of tha

collective labour agresment for the banking industry; the commitments envisaged in the evenl of retiremant,
death and dissbility cover a employeas, including those hired afier 8 March 1880, The Bank extemalised all its

commitments o senving and retred employess pursuant o Royal Decree 15B8/1988. These commitments are
instrumeniad in pension plans, insurance contracts with 2 non-Group company and insurance conlracts with
BEVA Sagurcs, 5.4, de Seguros y Reaseguros, which is 99.94% owned by the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria
Group. This employee welfare system includes defined contribution commitments, the amounts of which ar
detemmined, on a case-by-case basis, as a percentage of cartain compensation andior as a pre-established
fived amount. Defined benafit commitments are funded by insurance contracts.

14.1. Commitments in Spain

The commitments with personnel for post-employment defined contribution plans have no Impect in the
accomparying balance shests (Note 2.d). in 2007, the Bank has made confributions to the defined conlribution
pkans with a charge to the income stalement amounied ko €80 millon {in 2006 the contributions amounbed to E76

(Note 27)).
14,2 Pots-employmant banefit

The most significant actuarial assumptions used as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, for the quant®ication of
these commitments are a5 fallows:

LN

ety tablizs

P raly foimulatioh aoneal)
Consummer prce indas, [oormuidée snd)
Sustry rowth sl [comulathe anmal)
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14.2.1. Public soclal security system benafit supplement

The Bank has defined bensfit commitments for permanent disabllity and death of cument amployess and sarly
refireas: for death of certain retired employess; and for redirement of carain specific groups of curment

employess, early refirees and refired empioyees (benefits in progress), These commitmants are hadgaed throwegh
insurance contracts and intzmal fumnds,

Tha definad banefit commitmenis as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 wars a5 follows!

TR AR L ; iy
= [ e et I S T A S T e
Pension commitmants & retired empoyees
Panszion condingencias in respect of cament
Funding
nsurance contracts with unrelated nsurancoe

companias [Mote 13}
Unfunded obligations

To cover pension commiments above mentioned, insurance coniracts have been contracied with insurance
codmpanies with BEVA Seguros, S.A. de Seguros v Reaseguros, which s owned by the BEVA Group, The
commiments are registared under the heading “Funds for pensions and similar cbligations® of the
accompanying batance sheets (Mole 13) and the nsurance contract assels are recognised in tha heading
*Insuranca coniracts Enked to pensions”.

There Is no contributions made by the Comparny in relation o defined banefit refirernent commiiments  during

2007. During 2008, the contributions made by the Compary in relation 1o defined bensefit refirement
commitrments were recorded with a charge to the "Personnel Expenses — Coniribudions to extemal penson

funds” sccount of the income staternent and amouwnted to €6 thousand,

My Tak

14.2.2. Post-employment welfare benefits

The Company has welfare benefit commitments the effects of which aextend bayond the retirement of ihe
employees enfiied to the benefits, These commitments refate o cedain current employees and refirees,

depending upon the employes group fo which they belong.
The detall of these commitmenis as of 31 Decarnber 2007 and 2006 2 2s follows:

o =
Loy

A
wi ; -
sl
L

b e L P L S AT g
‘Post-empioyment wetlare benafit comm b
refired ampioyess

Vested post-employment welfare benafit
contingencies i respect of curment emplonees

Funding
intemal provisions (Note 13)
Unfunded obllgations
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The changae in 2007 and 2006 in the presant value of the vested obligation for post-employment weliare banefit
commilmanis were 28 fofiowes:
Thousands of Euros

Actuarial value at beginning of year
+ Inferest coast (Note 24)

+ Mormial cost for the yvear [Nota 27)

- Paymenis made

+- Acluarnial losses (Galns)

Actuarial value at end of year

14.3. Summary
Following is a summary of the charges recorded in the 2007 and 2006 income statemants for post-employmeant
benelit commitments:

Thousands of Euros

Interest expense and similar charges:
Interest cost of pension funds (MNota 24)
Personnel expenses:

Dther personned expenses (Mota 27)
Condrbufions io pansion plans (koka 27)
Provision expense (net):

Transfers io funds for pensions and similar
chiigations

As of 31 December 2007 and 2006 there were no unfunded actuaral gains or losses arising from differences
betwoen the actuarial assumptions and what had actuslly occurmed or, where appropriate, from the effects of

changes in the actuarial assumplions used.

14.4. Other commitments with personnel

Other benefits for active emplovees are eamed and setiied annually, not being necessary some provision. The
iotal cost of the employes welfare benefits provided by the Bank fo its currant employess in the 2007 and 2008
was €126 million and €101 mifilon, respectvely, and these amounls were recognised with & charge to Parsonnel

Expanses - Other in the accompanying income statements (Mota 27,
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15. Changes (0 fotal eguity

The changes In egulty in the vears ended Decamber 31, 2007 and 20606 wars as follows:

Thau=ands af Euros

Profil far'the
yisar
Balanoeat 1 January 2008 14,778 185,801
Appropriation of prior years” pofi - - 14,778 {14, 7TH| -
Prifit fior fss vear - - - 18,665 18 G0
Bafances al 11 December 2006 26874 83,180 ES.74T 15,6&9 208470
Anaroprialion of prios years” prost E = 1REGa 15 665 =
Peoft for the yeer ) - - - 24, 838 24 530
Ealance at 31 December 2007 ZEETA 53,180 E5d1E 24,838 230,308

16, _Share capital

At 31 Doecember 2007 and 2006, the Company's share capital amounted to EUR 26,674,439.23 and consisted of
7444 443 registered shares of EUR 3.61 par valua each, all with the same rights, fully subscribed and pald by
Corporacién General Financiera, SA_, axcept for one share held by Cidessa UNO, S.L. (both Banco Bithao
Vizcaya Argentana Group companies).

17. Share pramium

The Consolidated Companies Law exprassly parmits the use of the share pramium account balance (o increase
capial and establishas no spacliic resirichons a5 o its usae.

18. Ressrves

The breskdown of *Resarves” in the sccompanying balance shoets is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Balance at 1 Januvary 2006 3368 47 601 50,569
2005 prafit 1,478 13,300 14,778
Balance at 31 December 2006 4, B45 E0,901 65,747
2003 profil 529 18,140 19,669
Balance at 31 December 2007 5,379 30,041 A5.418

18.1. Legal reserve;

Lindar the Consolidated Companies Law, entities must transfer 10% of net profit for each year o the legal
reserve, These fransfess musl be made until the balance of this reserve reachses 20% of the share capial, The
l=gai resarve can be used fo increase capital provided that the remaining reserve balance does not talf below
10% of the increased share capital amaunt.

Except as mentioned above, unill the fegal reserve exceads 20% of share capital, it can only be used to offsst
losses, provided that sufficient othar resarves ane nol evallabla for his purposa.



18, Tax matters

The Company files consolidated tax retums as part of the consolidated tax group n® 2/82, tha Parent of which i5
Banco Bllbao Vircaya Argentaria, S.A. On 30 December 2002, the appropriate notfication was submitied to the
Ministry of Economy and Finance to extand indefinitety the Company's taxation under the consolidated taxation
regims n accordance with cumrent regulaixens,

The Company had 2001 and subsequent years open for review by the tax authodties for the main taxes
applicabla to H.

The recwciliation of the ncome tax charge, calculaled fmam accounting profit bedore tax, to fe fax cxpense
recognised for the period from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2007, is as follows:

Thousands of Eurcs
L PR '..'_"-'51 AT :

e
4

i

Rt

Increase due to permanent diferences
Increases (decreases) due fo temporary diferences:
Arismyg in tha curraril year
Arising in prior years

Taxable profit

Az a result of the tax reforms enactad In Spain in 2007, including, inter alia, the modificaiion of the standard
income tax rale, which was set st 32.5% for 2007 and at 30% for 2008 and subssquent years, Spanish
companias have adjusted their defered tax assets and liabilifies on the basis of tax rates that are expected to
apply whan they are recovared or selied. AS a result of the tax reform the expensss tax increase in €220

thousands in 2007,

The balance of *Tax Liabilities - Current® In the accompanying balance sheets Includes the lisbility relafing to the
various applicable taxes, including EUR 1,165 thousand of 2007 (442 thousand euros as of 31 December,

2007), Income tax payable on 2007 proft, net of the prepayments and withholdings made in the year amounted
fo EUR 13,541 thousand.

Pursuant to Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 and relatad provisions, the deformed tax assets are recognised under
“Tax Asssts” in the accompanying balanca shoets and amounted to EUR 10,888 thousand and EUR 17,382
{housand at 31 December 2007 and 2008, raspectively. Deferred tax assels arose mainly from the perod
provision for bad dabis and from the adaptation to the new accounting rules and standards.

The varying interpretafions which can be made of the tax regulations applicable to the operations performed by
the hanking industry in the open vears might give rise ko certain confingent tax [abilities that are not susceptble
to ohjective quantification. However, the Company's directors and its tax advisors consider that the likelihood of
these contingent liabiiies materiafising is remote and that, in any event, the tax dabt which mighl anse
trerafrom would not materally affect theesa financial slatements.
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2. Residual maturlty periods

The breakdown, by maturity, of the balances of cerain itams in the balance sheets at 31 December 2007 s as
iodlows:

Thousands of Exran
: month
AREETS
i il Badievicn Wl Ol Binks b1 ] . -
Loairs ang recarnoshing
Leoinss ] mchveanars 0 oiedl insdiadions 153 - = - -
Lo st S5 ndih i Sesdiiain Trosr 25N A 288,747 1802010 A48T, 180
LIGBRITIES=
Feoncial Eafekiy 6 et el £oal
Dwaipdals from crenE nsifubons oA, 55 iz e ] 7 mu 22155 31384
e fnanchl Lnsites 1Tl A2 - = S C
Ciher @5507 R (oan Babdly Hems Iﬂmﬂ_?ﬂ'l ‘||F|'BDT|J 2.151E 150040 RN

The breakdown, by maturity, at 31 December 2006 i as follows:
Trouzimds ol Elres

- s - - - 2|

ARSETS-
Cash and basacss wilh il hanes 3z
Lian e Mocoivabien
Lreares. pavd. I il o " . =,
Lwiid s adwancas o custhomers IBEENT  Enlelq 2042 TED 1,808, 853
LIARL TS
Financial Tabilies at amortised cost
Dhepmita S il rsbidions AT23.r40 355,264 R 414,505
Cihar Tnances dahiibas 16E1TT 1,258 - .
e scoid iormis ks Enbdty I [Brooged) 1144812 1,677 N3 1,194 354
21, Fair value of financial assets and liabilitlas

Following is a comparisan of the camying amounts of the Company's financial assets and liabilities and their
respeciive fair valses al year-end:

Thousands of Eurns

s s o

m k - I

e 11 - '

I - o e
'

Ll " : : ; I:..z!rq,'rng Fair Value [EEmombki- s - T8 TG
R e S W e :-.'-.‘_. Amount e AT L ara T A
Assels
Cash end balances with cantal banks a2 3z
Loans and receivabbas 5,408 561 5408 551
Liabilitas

Financial Eabitias al amorsed cost 5212134 5.212,138

The fair values of “Cash and Balanoces with Coniral Banks® |5 the same that the book value becauss it is shorl-
tarms operations. The fair value of the Held-lo-Maturty Investments” cormesponds with the quoied market plice.
The i value of "Loans and Receivables™ and "Financial Liabilibes al Amortised Cost” was eslimated by
discounting the expectad cash flows using the markets interest rates at each year-end {Note 2).
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2% 0 ignificant i o

22.1. Transactions for the account of third parties
The breakdown of “Transaclions for the Account of Third Parties” is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

ol 3 o 1

i b E ANy 105
i RSk e T, =
-,

Caondibonal bilis and other securibes recaived for collection

P

3,179,622

Commarcial bills recaived for collecton 786, 044
Cither sacurilies receivad for coliection 2,308,578
126,907

General govermanent

Resident sector

Mon resibent Secior
Total

22 2. Oiher off-oalance-sheet Hems

The breakdown of *Other OF-Bakance-Sheot ltems” i as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Fie SRSy
- Se

18,135

Past-dua income on doubtful assels -
1,155

Conditional bills and other securities received for collection

Documents securing transactions 133,235

Deposit accounts 03 g0

Guarantees received 112,723
3,776,157

Regestration accounts (unrestricted)
Coningd aecounts
Total

23,  Interest imilar In

Thit breakdown of the main dems of interest and similar income samed by the Comparny in 2007 and 20045 is as
foul s

Th.ns.anl:h of Euros

P L e o 2 W= 11 SN e
- i L T T i

Loans and advancas o other cablors
aneral governmeant
Resident sectar
MNon resident sacior

Total




The datail, by type of transaction, of “Interest and Simiar Income” in the accompanying Incomsa statements for
2007 and 2006 Iz 2z follows:

Thuusand{a! Eurcs
| 2008

Facioring transactions-

General government 1,437

Residant seclor 4,718

Non rasidant sacor it
Revarsa facioring transactions-

Ganaral govermment 15,460

Rasidant secior 62,521

Mon rezident sector TP i
Crtruar 5]
Total 145,862

24, Interest and similar charoes

The detail of the balance of this eading In the consolidalad income statement is as follows:

Thnu.rﬂn:l_: af Euros

Deposits for cradit NSHLBeNS
Cost allecable to provisions Tor pansions
(Mot 13 v 14)

Total

m IS0 insiriments

The balance of “Income from Equity Instrumenis” in the income statement relates to the dividends recaived from
the irvastment in Telefdnica Factoring do Brasd, Lida, {sae Mota 7L

26. Feaand icn i nd Bx a

The breakdown of “Fes and Commission Income” and of “Fee and Commission Expensa” in the accomparnying
Imoome stetements ks as follows:

Thousands -n_f Eurcs

2008
Fee and eommission income
Faciorng fransactions . rar
Ravarse facioring transactions 5 549
Cther fees and commissions 50
19,338
Fae and commission expenss
Feas gssigned to third parties 285
Civar feas and comimissans 132
417
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27. Personnpl oxpenses
The detzil of "Personnel Expenses” in the accompanying income slalements 13 as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Wages and salares

4 741
Social security cosis a%6
Contibutions o extermnal pension funds
(Hole 14) 76
Terminalion benefits £
Oiher personnel expensas 187
Total 5,900

In 2006 a long-ferm share-based remuneration plan was implemanted at the BBVA Group aimed at the Group’s
management team. Al 31 December 2007, in the case of the Company, the total cost of the plan to be accrued
over tha tarm thereof (fwee years) is not materal. The cost relsting to 2006 is recognised under "Personnal
Expensas — Dthwer Expenses™ in the intome statement.

The average number of employees in the Company, by professional category, in 2007 and 2006 was a5 follows:

“Executives
Supervisors
ﬁdm':nialmljva stali
Total

As of December 31, 2007, the number of emplayess in the Bank, by professional category and by gender, was
as follows:

Execufives ]
Supervisors i1
Administrative stalf i
Total 103




26, Other general adminis &

The breakdown of the balance of "Other General Adminisirative Expanses” in the income siatement is as
fallorws:

Thnmmth_ﬂf Euros _

Ll alley e T
Technology and systems B2
Cammunicalons K |
Advariising -
Dutsourced administrative seraoes 1462
Propecty, fidures and matarials , 226
Taxes other than income tax 6
Uther expensas 527
Todal 3114

Tha balancs of the heading “Other administrative axpanses® in the foregoing table Includes EUR 30 thousands
of the pudll fees pald by the Bank to el reapaecive suditors,

The servicas provided by our accountants meel the independance requirements established in Law 44/2002, of
22 Movembar, on Measures Reforming the Financial System and in the Sarbanes-Codey Act of 2002 adopted by
the Securiies and Exchange Commission (SEC), and accordingly they did not indude the performance of any

work that ks incompalibde with the audifing funclion,

28. Oiher gains and other losses
The balance of “Other Gaing® and “Cther Losses” in the accompamying income statament at 31 Decermber 2007

ralgtas o the regulansafion of prior years' balances.
2 ctions with Gr i)

The balances of the main aggregates in the financial statements arising from the transactions camed ouwl by the
Company wilh Banen Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group companies in 2007, which consist of ordinary business

and financial ransactions camed ouwt on an am's-length bazls, are as follows:

Thousands -:f_E__u_m

BALANCE SHEET:

Assols-

Cradil institutions

Liabilities-

Credil institufions (Motke 12)

Income tax payabla to BEVA (Wote 19}
INCOME STATEMENT:

Detait-
Interest expense and similar charges (Note 24)
Property rental expense (Note 10
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lanation added for transl nglish

These financisl ststements are presented on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted In Spain.
Certain accounting practices applied by the Company that conform with genarally acoepled gocounking
principles in Spain may nol conform with generally accapted acecunting prnciplas in other GrEs.



BBVA Factaring,
Establecimiento Financiero de Credito, S.A.

Director's report for 2007,

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

In 2007 BEVA Factoring, as in prior years, continued o increass ils business. Total assignments amounted o
EUR 23,540 million, up 15.58% on 20046,

Accordingly, the Company obtained a market share of 28,12% —EE.T_H'; in Fa_immﬁng products, 42.74% in export
facioring and 31.62% In reverse facioring—, thus consolidaling &5 position as indusiry leadens.

TARGETS FOR 2008

BHVA Faclorng will continue to develop and strengthen its factoring and reverss factoring products throwghout
the BEVA Group's areas of business,

The basic ohjective for 2007 for BEVA Factoring continues to be the use of new technologies and distrigsution
channeis, tho BEVA Group's branch network and its customers and suppliers.

The search for new markets and products, intermational business expansion and improving efficlency are the
othar prionbkes for the year,

OUTLOOK FOR 2008

As in prior years, we consider that the volume of assignments of receivables will continue 1o grow signincantly in
2008, thareby consolidating the faciodng and revarse factnying products as ane of the most eficent means of
financing the working capital of Spanish companies and Instifutions.

RISK EXPOSURE

BEVA Facioring's maximum credit risk exposurs amounted bo EUR 8,805,074 thousand at 31 December 2007,
up 25.8% on 2006 year-and. The breakdown of these figuras by product ;Fa::mnng arwd raverse factaring h shows
ihat reverse factoring has decreased with respect to 2008 by 23.6% —this product concenirates 41.67% of the
totad risk—, whereas facioring —which accounts for 58.33% of the tolal- increased by 27.41%.

At 31 Decomber 2007, lotal past-due balances amounted to EUR 53,479 thousand, of which EUR 5621
thousand were attiihutanle to the private seclor and EUR 47,636 thousand o the public sector.

Howaver, these past-dues can be desmed to be technical non-performance since they arize mainly from the
iong payment periods of the public sector rather than from an actusl non-parformance which may antall a loss

for the Company.

Moteworthy iz tha lerge amount of the past-duses fMom AWlonoMmoLs COmmunity govemmanis which arises fromi
the factorng transaclions performed on various aulonomous communily agencies managing the public health
cane Syslem.

Tha total past-due ratio was 0.77% at 31 December 2007, whereas that relating only to Lhe private sector was
0.73 %



Interest rate risk managemernt

BEVA Factoring performs active inlerest rale risk management for the punpose of minimising, and in certain
cases eiminating, the possible impact of changes In market rates on itz Investment and, consequently, on ihe
nel inerest income shown in the income statement,

Several clearly diferoniiated acfions are taken to achieve this goal: 1) o ablain the funds required for certain

tranzactions from the BEVA's Treasury Department; 2) to mongar the changes o inderest rates by Tollowing up
e expeciations of the Europesan Central Bank with respect o the foreseesabls Intarest rate policy at shart and
medium term; and 3) io consider the possibility of requasting funds from the BBVAs Treasury Depariment for
certain balances which, because of the term or price applied to cuslomers, might be affectad by the estimated

intarast rates.
REPORT ON THE ACTIVITY OF THE CUSTOMER CARE AND CUSTOMER OMBUDSMAN DEPARTMENT

Minlstry of Econcmy (cumently Ministry of Economy and Finance) Order ECOT34/2004, of 11 March, {Oficial
Stale Gazette (BOE) no. T2 of 24 March 2004) came info force on 24 July.

Article 5 of the BEVA Group's Rules on Customer Ombudsmen in Spain, which were approved by the Board of
Direclors of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, 5.4 —the parent of the BBVA Group— on 23 July 2004, and o
which BEVA Faclwing EF.C., 5.A. has adhered by ratification of its Board and in its capacity 85 a Banco Bithao

Vizcaye Argentaris, 5.4 consolidatad Group anfity, reads as follows (in translation):

1. The Custamar Care Sarvice and the Customer Ombudsman ghall submit 1o the governing body of each
enlity concormed, within the first quarier of each year, an explanatory report on their sendce perfammance
in the preceding year, addressing the mathers to be reported by each arvdily.

Thiz report, a summary of which shall be included in the annual report of the entity, shall contain ai keasi
fha following Hems:

a) A sltafisical summary of the claims and complaints handled, disdosing the number of claims and
complainls raceived, the number processed and the reasons for rejecting them, maliers mised and
pgrownds for the claims and complainks, and amounts imvalved,

by  Summary of Ihe final resolutions, indicating whether the complaints wern resobved in favour of or against
the person submiliing them and the cases in which informmabion or clarificalions were simply provided.

c} General grounds for the resolufions.

4}  Recommendations or sugoesons derving from the Departmenls experience, with a view o betier
attFning the aims of its work,

] Additionally, the Customer Care Saervice and the Customer Ombudsman shall submit to the Board of
Directors of BBVA, within the first quarter of each year. a joint explanatory repor on all the BBVA Group
entitias containing the information sat forth in paragraphs a), c) and d) and sististical infarmation on the
resolulicns in favour of and against the paerson submitling them,

4. As required by the afovementioned Aricle, the Manager of the Cusiomer Care Service submits fo the
Board of BEVA the following activity repart



ACTIVITY REPORT

The purposa of this report on the activity of the Cuslomer Care Service is lo repor on the complaints handlad in
the period from 1 January ¥ 31 Dacamber 2007,

Without prejudice to the functional ectivity relating to the procsssing and handling of claims and complaints that

may have been performed by BEVA's intenal units or depariments, whose achivity is not included in the scope of
this report, 2 compéainis had been submitied by cuslomers to BEVA Factoring EF.C., 5A malated 1o the

funclions discharged by this Service. One of the claims has been solved whereas the second ona is pending.

The: few claims relating to BEVA Factoring E.F.C., S.A,, this Customear Care Service cannot provida any desall
thereof and, therefore, no recommendations on good banking practice principles or eriteria can be rnade,

Consequently, the absence of claims or complaints submitied to this Customer Care Sendce against BEVA
Factoring E.F.C., S.A. can only be asssssed posilively in the ssnse that its customers fell no reed o filz
possible claims or complaints with this Department.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES
in 2007 the Company did not perform any research and development activilies.
TREASURY SHARE TRANSACTIONS

Tha Company did not perdorm any treasury share iransactions in 2007,





